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PART 1.         FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
 
ITEM 1.         CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
                       HENRY SCHEIN, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
                           CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
                        (in thousands, except share data) 
 
 
 
                                                                                 June 28,          December 28, 
                                                                                   1997                1996 
                                                                                 --------          ------------ 
                                                                                (unaudited)         (restated) 
                                                                                             
   ASSETS 
Current assets: 
   Cash and cash equivalents...........................................         $  20,298         $     43,750 
   Accounts receivable, less reserves of $9,659 and $7,373, 
     respectively......................................................           163,327              140,813 
   Inventories ........................................................           118,199              126,862 
   Deferred income taxes...............................................             7,056                6,189 
   Other ..............................................................            32,387               29,822 
                                                                                ---------         ------------ 
           Total current assets........................................           341,267              347,436 
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation and 
  amortization of  $42,838 and $39,751, respectively...................            40,503               37,571 
Goodwill and other intangibles, net of accumulated 
  amortization of $4,934 and $3,659, respectively......................            73,226               53,420 
Investments and other .................................................            29,757               29,023 
                                                                               ----------         ------------ 
                                                                                $ 484,753         $    467,450 
                                                                                =========         ============ 
 
   LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY  
Current liabilities: 
   Accounts payable....................................................         $  72,144         $     88,268 
   Bank credit lines...................................................             7,395                6,716 
   Accruals: 
     Salaries and related expenses.....................................            12,464               11,041 
     Other.............................................................            27,248               28,375 
     Current maturities of long-term debt..............................            12,244                8,461 
                                                                                ---------         ------------ 
           Total current liabilities...................................           131,495              142,861 
Long-term debt.........................................................            41,581               24,569 
Other liabilities .....................................................             4,650                2,715 
                                                                                ---------         ------------ 
           Total liabilities ..........................................           177,726              170,145 
                                                                                ---------         ------------ 
Minority interest......................................................             2,448                5,289 
                                                                                ---------         ------------ 
 
Stockholders' equity: 
 
   Common stock, $.01 par value, authorized 60,000,000; issued  
     24,181,300 and 23,342,441, respectively ..........................               242                  233 
   Additional paid-in capital .........................................           256,648              254,198 
   Retained earnings  .................................................            50,547               39,311 
   Treasury stock, at cost 62,479 and 60,529 shares, respectively .....            (1,156)              (1,090) 
   Foreign currency translation adjustment ............................            (1,702)                (636) 
                                                                                ---------         ------------ 
            Total stockholders' equity ................................           304,579              292,016 
                                                                                ---------         ------------ 
                                                                                $ 484,753          $   467,450 
                                                                                =========         ============ 
 
 
          See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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                       HENRY SCHEIN, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
                      CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 
                      (in thousands, except per share data) 
                                     (unaudited) 
 
 
 
                                                               Three Months Ended                  Six  Months Ended 
                                                             June 28,         June 29,         June 28,          June 29, 
                                                               1997             1996             1997              1996 
                                                          ------------        ---------         ------           ------- 
                                                                              (restated)                        (restated) 
                                                                                                    
Net sales.........................................         $263,106          $197,256         $503,605         $ 384,595 
Cost of sales.....................................          184,064           137,336          352,841           268,169 
                                                            -------           -------         ----------       ---------- 
        Gross profit..............................           79,042            59,920          150,764           116,426 
Operating expenses: 
    Selling, general and administrative...........           68,393            52,744          133,175           104,140 
    Merger and integration costs .................            1,826                --            4,353                -- 
                                                          ---------      ------------       ----------    -------------- 
         Operating income ........................            8,823             7,176           13,236            12,286 
Other income (expense): 
    Interest income ..............................              340               763              868             1,172 
    Interest expense .............................             (850)           (1,348)          (1,703)           (2,309) 
    Other - net ..................................              153               128               80                31 
                                                          ---------      ------------       ----------    -------------- 
         Income before taxes on income, 
          minority interest and equity in 
          earnings of  affiliates.................            8,466             6,719           12,481            11,180 
Taxes on income ..................................            3,658             1,920            6,138             3,871 
Minority interest in net income (loss) of 
    subsidiaries .................................             (115)               56             (129)              (14) 
Equity in earnings of affiliates  ................              381               361              331               497 
                                                          ---------        ----------       ----------     ------------- 
         Net income  .............................          $ 5,304          $  5,104         $  6,803       $     7,820 
                                                            =======          ========         ========       =========== 
Net income per common share ......................         $   0.21                         $     0.28 
                                                           ========                         ========== 
Pro forma: 
    Historical net income  .......................                             $5,104                         $    7,820 
    Pro forma adjustments: 
        Provision for income taxes on 
          previously untaxed earnings of an 
          acquisition ............................                               (430)                              (430) 
                                                                            ---------                         ---------- 
    Pro forma net income .........................                             $4,674                          $   7,390 
                                                                            =========                         ========== 
    Pro forma net income per common share                                   $    0.23                          $    0.37 
                                                                            =========                         ========== 
    Weighted average common and common 
        equivalent shares outstanding ............           24,675            20,162           23,997            19,957 
                                                             ======         =========       ==========        ==========         
 
 
 
 
 
         See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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                     HENRY SCHEIN, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
                    CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
                                (in thousands) 
                                 (unaudited) 
 
 
 
                                                                                            Six  Months Ended 
                                                                                       ------------------------------- 
                                                                                       June 28,              June 29, 
                                                                                         1997                  1996 
                                                                                        ------               -------- 
                                                                                                            (restated) 
                                                                                                        
Cash flows from operating activities: 
    Net income..........................................................               $    6,803           $    7,820 
    Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash used in 
      operating  activities: 
        Depreciation and amortization....................................                   4,591                3,570 
        Provision (benefit) for losses on accounts receivable ...........                   2,106                 (216) 
        Provision (benefit) for deferred income taxes ...................                     888                 (358) 
        Stock issued to ESOP Trust ......................................                   1,111                   -- 
        Undistributed earnings of affiliates.............................                    (331)                (497) 
        Minority interest in net loss of subsidiaries ...................                    (129)                 (14) 
        Other ...........................................................                      33                   80 
    Changes in assets and liabilities: 
        Increase in accounts receivable..................................                 (18,919)             (18,381) 
        Decrease in inventories .........................................                  10,478                  913 
        (Increase) decrease in other current assets .....................                  (2,506)                 337 
        Decrease in accounts payable and accruals .......................                 (19,528)              (9,168) 
                                                                                         --------         ------------ 
Net cash used in operating activities....................................                 (15,403)             (15,914) 
                                                                                         ---------       ------------- 
 
Cash flows from investing activities: 
    Capital expenditures ................................................                  (5,448)              (5,363) 
    Business acquisitions, net of cash acquired..........................                 (13,128)              (6,963) 
    Other ...............................................................                     (67)              (2,355) 
                                                                                      -----------         ------------ 
Net cash used in investing activities ...................................                 (18,643)             (14,681) 
                                                                                         --------      --------------- 
 
Cash flows from financing activities: 
    Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt ............................                      12                  846 
    Principal payments on long-term debt ................................                  (1,865)              (4,270) 
    Proceeds from issuance of stock......................................                      --              124,070 
    Proceeds from borrowings from banks  ................................                  14,750                2,392 
    Payments on borrowings from banks  ..................................                    (773)              (5,894) 
    Purchase of treasury stock  .........................................                     (66)                (144) 
    Other ...............................................................                  (1,464)                (762) 
                                                                                     ------------      --------------- 
Net cash provided by financing activities  ..............................                  10,594              116,238 
 
                                                                                     ------------           ---------- 
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  ...................                 (23,452)              85,643 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period  .........................                  43,750                8,882 
                                                                                      -----------        ------------- 
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period   ..............................              $   20,298          $    94,525 
                                                                                       ==========          =========== 
 
 
         See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 
 
                                      5 
 



 
 
                     HENRY SCHEIN, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
                  NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
                      (in thousands, except share data) 
                                 (unaudited) 
 
Note 1. Basis of Presentation 
 
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Henry Schein, Inc. 
and its wholly-owned and majority-owned subsidiaries (collectively, the 
"Company"). 
 
In the opinion of the Company's management, the accompanying unaudited 
consolidated financial statements contain all adjustments (consisting of only 
normal recurring adjustments) necessary to present fairly the information set 
forth therein. These consolidated financial statements are condensed and 
therefore do not include all of the information and footnotes required by 
generally accepted accounting principles for complete financial statements. The 
financial statements include adjustments to give effect to the acquisition of 
Dentrix Dental Systems, Inc. ("Dentrix"), effective February 28, 1997, which was 
accounted for under the pooling of interests method. The consolidated financial 
statements should be read in conjunction with the Company's consolidated 
financial statements and notes thereto included in the Company's Annual Report 
on Form 10-K and 10-K/A for the year ended December 28, 1996. The Company 
follows the same accounting policies in preparation of interim reports. The 
results of operations for the six months ended June 28, 1997 are not necessarily 
indicative of the results to be expected for the fiscal year ending December 27, 
1997 or any other period. 
 
Note 2.  Business Acquisitions 
 
During the year ended December 28, 1996, the Company acquired seventeen 
healthcare distribution businesses. The 1996 acquisitions included 10 dental and 
three medical companies, a veterinary supply distributor and three international 
dental companies, with aggregate net sales in their last fiscal year ends of 
approximately $104,000, and were all accounted for using the purchase method of 
accounting. Of these, fifteen were for majority ownership (100% in nine of the 
transactions). The total amount of cash paid and promissory notes issued for 
these acquisitions was approximately $33,423. The Company also issued 155,183 
shares of common stock in 1996 in connection with two of these acquisitions. 
Operations of these businesses have been included in the consolidated financial 
statements from their respective acquisition dates. No single 1996 acquisition 
was material. 
 
During the six months ended June 28, 1997, the Company completed 11  
acquisitions, and had four pending acquisitions, all of which have subsequently 
closed (see Note 5). The 1997 completed acquisitions included three medical and 
three dental supply companies, with aggregate net sales for their most recently 
completed year ends of approximately $32,000 and $17,100, respectively, two 
international dental supply companies with aggregate net sales of approximately 
$5,300 and three technology and value-added product companies with aggregate net 
sales of approximately $20,300. Of the 11 completed acquisitions, four were 
accounted for under the pooling of interests method, with the remainder being 
 
accounted for under the purchase method of accounting (six for 100% ownership 
interests and one for a 60% ownership interest). The financial statements have 
been restated to give retroactive effect to one of the pooling transactions 
(Dentrix) as the remaining three transactions were not material and have been 
included in the consolidated financial statements from the beginning of the 
quarter in which the acquisitions occurred. 
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                     HENRY SCHEIN, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
                  NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
                      (in thousands, except share data) 
                                 (unaudited) 
 
 
Note 2.  Business Acquisitions (Continued) 
 
The total amount of cash paid and promissory notes issued for the 1997 completed 
acquisitions accounted for under the purchase method of accounting was 
approximately $22,179. The excess of the acquisition costs over the fair value 
of identifiable net assets acquired for these acquisitions will be amortized on 
a straight-line basis over a period not to exceed 30 years. 
 
The Company also issued 1,916,866 shares of common stock in connection with the 
four pooling transactions, the most significant of which was with Dentrix. On 
February 28, 1997, all of the common stock of Dentrix, a leading provider of 
clinically-based dental practice management systems, with net sales of 
approximately $10,200, was acquired in exchange for 1,070,000 shares of the 
Company's common stock. 
 
In connection with the acquisitions accounted for under the pooling of interests 
method of accounting, during the six and three months ended June 28, 1997, the 
Company incurred certain merger and integration costs of approximately $4,353 
and $1,826, respectively. Net of taxes, for the six and three months ended June 
28, 1997, merger and integration costs were approximately $0.17 and $0.06 per 
share, respectively. Merger and integration costs consist primarily of 
investment banking, legal, accounting and advisory fees, as well as certain 
other integration costs associated with these mergers. 
 
Operations of the 1997 completed acquisitions, accounted for under the purchase 
method of accounting, have been included in the consolidated financial 
statements from their respective acquisition dates. These acquisitions, together 
with the immaterial pooling transactions, had net sales for the six months ended 
June 29, 1996 of approximately $26,522. 
 
Additionally, pursuant to a shareholders' agreement, certain minority 
shareholders of a subsidiary of the Company exercised their option to sell their 
shares in the subsidiary to the Company. The value of the shares put to the 
Company was approximately $11,800, of which approximately $3,200 was paid for in 
cash, with the remainder payable over two years in equal annual installments. No 
single acquisition completed in the six months ended June 28, 1997 was material. 
 
 
The summarized unaudited pro forma results of operations set forth below for the 
six months ended June 28, 1997 and June 29, 1996 assume the acquisitions, 
completed in 1996 and the first half of 1997, which were accounted for under the 
purchase and pooling methods of accounting, occurred as of the beginning of each 
of these periods. 
 
 
 
                                                                       Six Months Ended 
                                                              ---------------------------------- 
                                                                June 28,              June 29, 
                                                                  1997                  1996 
                                                              -------------        -------------- 
                                                                              
Net sales..................................................   $     514,697         $    431,881 
Net income.................................................           6,343                8,114 
Pro forma net income, reflecting the Dentrix tax adjustment 
   in 1996, and adjustment in 1997 to exclude merger and 
    integration costs, net of taxes........................          10,376                7,684 
Pro forma net income per common share......................   $        0.42         $       0.37 
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                     HENRY SCHEIN, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
                  NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
                      (in thousands, except share data) 
                                 (unaudited) 
 
 
Note 2 - Business Acquisitions (Continued) 
 
Pro forma net income per common share, including acquisitions, may not be 
indicative of actual results, primarily because the pro forma earnings include 
historical results of operations of acquired entities and do not reflect any 
cost savings that may result from the Company's integration efforts. 
 
Net sales of the Company and Dentrix for the six months ended June 28, 1996 was 
$380,081 and $4,514, respectively. For the two months ended February 28, 1997, 
the effective date of the Dentrix acquisition, Dentrix's net sales were $1,842. 
 
On March 7, 1997, the Company entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the 
"Merger Agreement") pursuant to which Micro Bio-Medics, Inc. ("MBMI") was merged 
into a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. As a result of the transaction, 
which was approved by the Boards of Directors of MBMI and the Company, and 
MBMI's shareholders on August 1, 1997, each outstanding share of MBMI's common 
stock was exchanged at a fixed rate of 0.62 of a share of the Company's common 
stock. The acquisition of MBMI will be accounted for under the pooling of 
interests method of accounting. 
 
MBMI distributes medical supplies to physicians and hospitals in the New York 
metropolitan area, as well as to healthcare professionals in sports medicine, 
 
emergency medicine, school health, industrial safety, government and laboratory 
markets nationwide. MBMI had net sales of approximately $150,000 and net income 
of approximately $1,700 for its fiscal year ended November 30, 1996. 
 
The following summarized pro forma unaudited results of operations combines the 
results of the Company and MBMI assuming the acquisition of MBMI occurred on 
December 30, 1995. 
 
 
 
                                                                                         Six Months Ended 
                                                                             ------------------------------------------ 
                                                                                June 28,                June 29, 
                                                                                  1997                    1996 
                                                                                ---------                 ----- 
                                                                                                     
Net sales...........................................................         $       581,431              $    450,823 
Net income  ........................................................                   7,482                     8,274 
Pro forma net income, reflecting the Dentrix tax adjustment in 1996, 
  and adjustment in 1997 to exclude merger and integration costs,  
  net of taxes......................................................                  11,515                     7,844 
Pro forma net income per common share...............................         $          0.42              $       0.34 
 
 
 
On August 3, 1997, the Company entered into a definitive merger agreement with 
Sullivan Dental Products, Inc. ("Sullivan") (Nasdaq:SULL) pursuant to which the 
Company will acquire Sullivan in a stock-for-stock merger. The merger is 
intended to be accounted for as a pooling of interests and is expected to be 
tax-free to Sullivan's shareholders. Under the terms of the agreement, which has 
been approved by the Board of Directors of each company, outstanding shares of 
Sullivan will be exchanged at a fixed rate of 0.735 of a share of the Company's 
common stock for each Sullivan share in a transaction valued at approximately 
$318,000 based on the Company's closing stock price on Friday, August 1, 1997. 
The merger is expected to close in the fourth quarter of 1997 and is subject to 
Hart-Scott-Rodino, each company's shareholder approval, and other customary 
closing conditions. The Company anticipates recording a non-recurring charge 
related to the transaction in the fourth quarter of 1997. 
 
Sullivan had net sales for the year ended December 31, 1996 and the six months 
ended June 30, 1997 of approximately $242,000 and $128,000, respectively. 
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                     HENRY SCHEIN, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
                  NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
                      (in thousands, except share data) 
                                 (unaudited) 
 
 
Note 3.  Public Offering 
 
 
On June 21, 1996, the Company sold 3,734,375 shares and certain of its 
stockholders sold 2,812,000 shares of common stock of the Company in a public 
offering (the "Offering") at a price to the public of $35.00 per share, netting 
proceeds to the Company, after underwriting discounts and expenses, of 
approximately $124,070. Proceeds from the Offering were used to (i) repay 
$34,600 outstanding under the Company's revolving credit agreement, (ii) finance 
1996 acquisitions totaling $32,540 and (iii) repay a $2,400 note payable 
incurred in connection with a 1995 acquisition; the remaining proceeds have been 
used for working capital needs and for general corporate purposes. 
 
Note 4.  Supplemental Net Income per Share 
 
Supplemental net income per share for the six months ended June 29, 1996 was 
$0.38. For this calculation, the weighted average number of common shares 
includes the shares assumed to provide the proceeds, at the Offering price (See 
Note 3), needed to retire average revolving credit borrowings and other debt for 
the period from the beginning of the year (or the date the debt was incurred) to 
the respective retirement date. The supplemental net income excludes financing 
and interest expenses of the debt. 
 
Note 5. Subsequent Events 
 
As of June 28, 1997, the Company had six pending acquisitions, including MBMI 
(which closed on August 1, 1997) and three international medical supply 
companies (which all closed in July 1997). The three international medical 
supply companies had combined net sales for 1996 of approximately $17,800. 
 
Additionally, the Company has entered into an agreement to acquire certain 
assets and the business of IDE Interstate, Inc., a direct marketer of healthcare 
products to dentists, doctors and veterinarians with net sales for 1996 of 
approximately $50,000. This transaction is subject to certain closing conditions 
and is expected to be completed in the third quarter of 1997. 
 
On August 3, 1997, the Company entered into the Agreement and Plan of Merger 
(the "Merger Agreement") pursuant to which Sullivan Dental Products, Inc. 
("Sullivan") will merge into a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company upon the 
exchange of 0.735 shares of the Company's common stock for each outstanding 
share of Sullivan stock. The Merger Agreement which has been approved by the 
board of directors of each company, is subject to Hart-Scott-Rodino, each 
company's shareholder approval, and other customary closing conditions. The 
Company will record a non-recurring charge when the transaction closes, which it 
expects to occur in the fourth quarter of 1997. 
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                     HENRY SCHEIN, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
                  NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
                      (in thousands, except share data) 
                                 (unaudited) 
              
Note 5. Subsequent Events (Continued) 
 
 
Sullivan distributes consumable dental supplies to dentists using a marketing 
strategy which combines personal visits by sales representatives with a catalog 
of approximately 12,000 competitively priced items. Sullivan also sells, 
installs and services dental equipment through 52 sales and service centers 
located throughout the U.S. Sullivan had net sales of approximately $242,000 and 
earnings of approximately $8,700 for its year ended December 31, 1996. 
 
                                      10 
 
 



 
 
ITEM 2.         MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL 
                CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 
 
RECENT DEVELOPMENTS 
 
Since December 28, 1996, the Company completed 11 acquisitions, and had four 
pending acquisitions, of which all have subsequently closed. The 1997 completed 
acquisitions included three medical and three dental supply companies, with 
aggregate net sales for their most recently completed year ends of approximately 
$32.0 million and $17.1 million, respectively, two international dental supply 
companies with aggregate net sales of approximately $5.3 million and three 
technology and value-added product companies with aggregate net sales of 
approximately $20.3 million. Of the 11 completed acquisitions, four were 
accounted for under the pooling of interests method, with the remainder being 
accounted for under the purchase method of accounting (six for 100% ownership 
interests and one for a 60% ownership interest). The financial statements have 
been restated to give retroactive effect to one of the pooling transactions 
(Dentrix) as the remaining three were not material and have been included in the 
consolidated financial statements from the beginning of the quarter in which the 
acquisition occurred. 
 
Operations of the 1997 completed acquisitions, accounted for under the purchase 
method of accounting, have been included in the consolidated financial 
statements from their respective acquisition dates. These acquisitions, together 
with the immaterial pooling transactions, had net sales for the six months ended 
June 29, 1996 of approximately $26.5 million. No single acquisition completed in 
the six months ended June 28, 1997 was material. 
 
Included in the pending transactions are two agreements and plans of merger 
between the Company and: (i) MBMI, which closed on August 1, 1997, pursuant to 
which MBMI merged into a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company upon the 
exchange of 0.62 shares of the Company's common stock for each share of MBMI 
common stock, and (ii) Sullivan, entered into on August 3, 1997, pursuant to 
which Sullivan will also merge into a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company 
upon the exchange of 0.735 shares of the Company's common stock for each 
outstanding share of Sullivan stock. 
 
MBMI distributes medical supplies to physicians and hospitals in the New York 
metropolitan area, as well as to healthcare professionals in sports medicine, 
emergency medicine, school health, industrial safety, government and laboratory 
markets nationwide. MBMI had net sales of approximately $150.0 million and 
 
earnings of approximately $1.7 million for its fiscal year ended November 30, 
1996. Sullivan distributes consumable dental supplies to dentists using a 
marketing strategy which combines personal visits by sales representatives with 
a catalog of approximately 12,000 competitively priced items. Sullivan also 
sells, installs and services dental equipment through 52 sales and service 
centers located throughout the U.S. Sullivan had net sales of approximately 
$242.0 million and earnings of approximately $8.7 million for its year ended 
December 31, 1996. 
 
The completion of the Sullivan transaction is subject to the satisfaction of 
customary closing conditions, including Hart-Scott-Rodino and, among others, 
each company's shareholder approval. The transaction is expected to be completed 
in the fourth quarter of 1997, although no assurances can be given in this 
regard. For a more complete description of the terms of the Sullivan merger 
agreement, reference is made to the Exhibits of this Form 10-Q. The Company 
expects to file a 
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Registration Statement on Form S-4 with the Securities and Exchange Commission 
with respect to the securities to be issued in connection with the Sullivan 
merger. 
 
In connection with the acquisitions accounted for under the pooling of interests 
method of accounting, during the six and three months ended June 28, 1997, the 
Company incurred certain merger and integration costs of approximately $4.4 
million and $1.8 million, respectively. Net of taxes, for the six and three 
months ended June 28, 1997, merger and integration costs were approximately 
$0.17 and $0.06 per share, respectively. Merger and integration costs consist 
primarily of investment banking, legal, accounting and advisory fees, as well as 
certain other integration costs associated with these mergers. 
 
Excluding the merger and integration costs, net income and net income per common 
share would have been $10.8 million and $0.45, respectively, for the six months 
ended June 28, 1997, and $6.8 million and $0.28, respectively, for the three 
months then ended. 
 
Through the six months ended June 28, 1997, the Company used United Parcel 
Services of America, Inc. ("UPS") for delivery of substantially all domestic 
orders. Effective August 4, 1997 the Teamsters Union commenced a strike against 
UPS, thereby substantially reducing UPS's ability to fulfill the shipments of 
its customers' orders. While UPS continues to fulfill deliveries for some of its 
customers' orders, and has stated that it intends to give priority service to 
the delivery of medical supplies, there can be no assurance that the service 
levels UPS can provide will be adequate to meet the Company's needs. 
Accordingly, the Company has made arrangements for alternative means of 
delivery. 
 
While the Company cannot reasonably determine the impact the UPS workers' strike 
may have on its customers' ordering habits, or on delivery times, the 
alternative means of delivery the Company has provided for will cost 
incrementally more than would otherwise have been incurred if UPS were to 
fulfill substantially all of the Company's domestic order requirements. Due to 
the uncertainty of the length and severity of the strike, the Company cannot 
 
reasonably determine the impact the UPS workers' strike will have on the 
Company. 
 
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 
 
Three Months Ended June 28, 1997 compared to Three Months Ended June 29, 1996 
 
Net sales increased $65.8 million, or 33.4%, to $263.1 million for the three 
months ended June 28, 1997 from $197.3 million for the three months ended June 
29, 1996. The Company estimates that approximately 17.3% of the increase was due 
to internal growth, while the remaining 16.1% was due to acquisitions. Of the 
$65.8 million increase, approximately $26.1 million represented a 24.6% increase 
in the Company's dental business, $24.1 million represented a 58.3% increase in 
its medical business, $9.2 million represented a 27.6% increase in its 
international business, $1.1 million represented a 12.3% increase in the 
Company's veterinary business, and $5.3 million represented a 69.8% increase in 
its technology business. The increase in dental net sales was primarily the 
result of the continuing favorable impact of the Company's integrated sales and 
marketing approach (which coordinates the efforts of its field sales consultants 
with its direct marketing and telesales personnel), acquisitions, continued 
success in the Company's target marketing programs and increased sales in the 
large dental equipment market. The increase in medical net sales was primarily 
due to acquisitions, increased net sales to renal dialysis centers and net sales 
to customers enrolled in the AMA Purchase Link program. In the international 
market, the increase in net sales was due equally to acquisitions and increased 
unit volume growth. Unfavorable exchange rate translation adjustments resulted 
in a net sales decrease of approximately $1.6 million. Had net sales for the 
international market been translated at the same exchange rates in effect during 
1996, net sales would have increased by an additional 4.6%. In the veterinary 
market, the increase in net sales was primarily due to increased account 
penetration with corporate accounts. The increase in technology sales was 
primarily due to 1997 acquisitions. 
 
Gross profit increased by $19.1 million, or 31.9%, to $79.0 million for the 
three months ended June 28, 1997 from $59.9 million for the three months ended 
June 29, 1996, while gross profit margin decreased to 30.0% from 30.4%. The 
$19.1 million increase in gross profit was primarily due to increased sales 
volume and acquisitions. The decrease in gross profit margin was primarily due 
to lower technology sales as a percentage of total net sales and other sales mix 
changes. 
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Selling, general and administrative expenses increased by $15.7 million, or 
29.8%, to $68.4 million for the three months ended June 28, 1997 from $52.7 
million for the three months ended June 29, 1996. Selling and shipping expenses 
increased by $9.1 million, or 25.2% to $45.2 million for the three months ended 
June 28, 1997 from $36.1 million for the three months ended June 29, 1996. As a 
percentage of net sales, selling and shipping expenses decreased 1.1% to 17.2% 
for the three months ended June 28, 1997 from 18.3% for the three months ended 
June 29, 1996. This decrease was primarily due to leveraging of the Company's 
distribution infrastructure, partially offset by an increase in selling 
expenses. General and administrative expenses increased $6.6 million, or 39.8%, 
 
to $23.2 million for the three months ended June 28, 1997 from $16.6 million for 
the three months ended June 29, 1996, primarily as a result of acquisitions. As 
a percentage of net sales, general and administrative expenses increased 0.4% to 
8.8% for the three months ended June 28, 1997 from 8.4% for the three months 
ended June 29, 1996. 
 
Other income (expense)-net increased by $0.1 million, or 20.0%, to ($0.4) 
million for the three months ended June 28, 1997 from ($0.5) million for the 
three months ended June 29, 1996. This increase was primarily due to a decrease 
in average borrowings, which were partially paid off with proceeds from the 
Company's follow-on offering in June 1996, combined with an increase in imputed 
interest income arising from non-interest bearing extended payment term sales. 
 
For the three months ended June 28, 1997, the Company's effective tax rate was 
43.2%. Excluding merger and integration costs, substantially all of which are 
not deductible for income tax purposes, the Company's effective tax rate would 
have been 38.7%. The difference between the effective tax rate and the federal 
statutory rate relates primarily to state income taxes. For the three months 
ended June 29, 1996, the Company's effective rate was 28.6%, and on a pro forma 
basis was 35.0%, which was lower than the federal statutory rate primarily due 
to the restructuring of certain foreign subsidiaries, thereby allowing the 
utilization of their losses, offset by the effects of state income taxes. 
 
Six Months Ended June 28, 1997 compared to Six Months Ended June 29, 1996 
 
Net sales increased $119.0 million, or 30.9%, to $503.6 million for the six 
months ended June 28, 1997 from $384.6 million for the six months ended June 29, 
1996. The Company estimates that overall approximately 16.0% of the increase was 
due to internal growth, while the remaining 14.9% was due to acquisitions. Of 
the $119.0 million increase, approximately $57.6 million represented a 28.8% 
increase in the Company's dental business, $40.0 million represented a 49.1% 
increase in its medical business, $13.6 million represented a 19.6% increase in 
its international business, and $2.6 million represented a 14.5% increase in the 
Company's veterinary business and $5.2 million represented a 33.4% increase in 
its technology business. The increase in dental net sales was primarily the 
result of the continuing favorable impact of the Company's integrated sales and 
marketing approach (which coordinates the efforts of its field sales consultants 
with its direct marketing and telesales personnel), acquisitions, continued 
success in the Company's target marketing programs and increased sales in the 
large dental equipment market. The increase in medical net sales was primarily 
due to acquisitions, increased net sales to renal dialysis centers and net sales 
to customers enrolled in the AMA Purchase Link program. In the international 
market, the increase in net sales was due equally to acquisitions and increased 
unit volume growth. Unfavorable exchange rate translation adjustments resulted 
in a net sales decrease of approximately $2.9 million dollars. Had net sales for 
the international market been translated at the same exchange rates in effect 
during 1996, net sales would have increased by an additional 4.2 %. In the 
veterinary 
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market, the increase in net sales was primarily due to increased account 
penetration with corporate accounts. The increase in technology sales was 
primarily due to 1997 acquisitions. 
 
Gross profit increased by $34.4 million, or 29.5%, to $150.8 million for the six 
months ended June 28, 1997 from $116.4 million for the six months ended June 29, 
1996, while gross profit margin decreased to 29.9% from 30.3%. The $34.4 million 
increase in gross profit was primarily due to increased sales volume and 
acquisitions. The decrease in gross profit margin was primary due to lower 
technology sales as a percentage of total net sales and other sales mix changes. 
 
Selling, general and administrative expenses increased by $29.1 million, or 
28.0%, to $133.2 million for the six months ended June 28, 1997 compared to 
$104.1 million for the six months ended June 29, 1996. Selling and shipping 
expenses increased by $17.3 million, or 24.5%, to $87.9 million for the six 
months ended June 28, 1997 from $70.6 million for the six months ended June 29, 
1996. As a percentage of net sales, selling and shipping expenses decreased 0.9% 
to 17.5% for the six months ended June 28, 1997 from 18.4% for the six months 
months ended June 29, 1996. This decrease was primarily due to leveraging of the 
Company's distribution infrastructure, partially offset by an increase in 
selling expenses. General and administrative expenses increased $11.8 million, 
or 35.2%, to $45.3 million for the six months ended June 28, 1997 from $33.5 
million for the six months ended June 29, 1996, primarily as a result of 
acquisitions. As a percentage of net sales, general and administrative expenses 
increased 0.3% to 9.0% for the six months ended June 28, 1997 from 8.7% for the 
six months ended June 29, 1996. 
 
Other income (expense)-net decreased by $0.3 million, or 27.3%, to ($0.8) 
million for the six months ended June 28, 1997 from ($1.1) million for the six 
months ended June 29, 1996. This decrease was primarily due to a decrease in 
average borrowings, which were partially paid off with proceeds from the 
Company's follow-on offering in June 1996, combined with an increase in imputed 
interest income arising from non-interest bearing extended payment term sales. 
 
For the six months ended June 28, 1997, the Company's effective tax rate was 
49.2%. Excluding merger and integration costs, substantially all of which are 
not deductible for income tax purposes, the Company's effective tax rate would 
have been 38.4%. The difference between the effective tax rate and the federal 
statutory rate relates primarily to state income taxes. For the six months ended 
June 29, 1996, the Company's effective rate was 34.6%, and on a pro forma basis 
was 38.5%, which was higher than the federal statutory rate is primarily due to 
state income taxes. 
 
LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES 
 
The Company's principal capital requirements have been to fund (a) working 
capital needs resulting from increased sales, extended payment terms on various 
products and special inventory forward buy-in opportunities, (b) capital 
expenditures, and (c) acquisitions. Since sales have traditionally been 
strongest during the fourth quarter and special inventory forward buy-in 
opportunities have traditionally been most prevalent just before the end of the 
year, the Company's working capital requirements are generally higher from the 
 
end of the third quarter to the end of the first quarter of the following year. 
The Company has financed its business primarily through revolving credit 
facilities and stock issuances. 
 
Net cash used in operating activities for the six months ended June 28, 1997 of 
$15.4 million resulted primarily from a net increase in working capital of $30.5 
million offset, in part, by net 
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income adjusted for non-cash charges relating primarily to depreciation and 
amortization of $15.1 million. The increase in working capital was primarily due 
to (i) a decrease in accounts payable and other accrued expenses of $19.5 
million resulting primarily from payments to vendors for inventory purchased as 
part of the Company's year-end inventory forward buy-in program and, (ii) a 
$18.9 million increase in accounts receivable resulting from increased sales and 
extended payment terms, (iii) a $2.5 million increase in other current assets. 
offset by, (i) a $10.5 million decrease in inventory. The Company anticipates 
future increases in working capital as a result of its continued sales growth. 
 
Net cash used in investing activities for the six months ended June 28, 1997 of 
$18.6 million resulted primarily from cash outlays for acquisitions of $13.1 
million and capital expenditures of $5.4 million. Capital expenditures is 
comparable with the prior year period as the Company continues developing new 
computer systems as well as incurring expenditures for additional operating 
facilities. The Company expects that it will continue to invest in excess of 
$10.0 million per year in capital projects to modernize and expand its 
facilities and infrastructure systems. 
 
Net cash provided by financing activities for the six months ended June 28, 1997 
of $10.6 million resulted primarily from net borrowings on bank credit lines 
partially offset by net payments on long-term debt. A balloon payment of 
approximately $3.5 million is due on October 31, 1997 under a term loan 
associated with a foreign acquisition. 
 
In addition, with respect to certain acquisitions and joint ventures, holders of 
minority interest in the acquired entities or ventures have the right at certain 
times to require the Company to acquire their interest at either fair market 
value or a formula price based on earnings of the entity. 
 
Pursuant to a shareholders' agreement, certain minority shareholders of a 
subsidiary of the Company exercised their option to sell their shares in the 
subsidiary to the Company. The value of the shares put to the Company was 
approximately $11.8 million, of which approximately $3.2 million was paid for in 
cash, with the remainder payable over two years in equal annual installments. 
 
The Company's cash and cash equivalents as of June 28, 1997 of $20.3 million are 
invested primarily in short-term bank deposits. These investments have staggered 
maturity dates, none greater than three months, and have a high degree of 
liquidity since the securities are actively traded in public markets. 
 
The Company entered into an amended revolving credit facility on January 31, 
1997 that increased its main credit facility from $65.0 million to $100.0 
million, extended the facility termination to January 30, 2002 and reduced the 
interest rate on the Company's borrowings under the facility. Borrowings under 
the credit facility were $31.3 million at June 28, 1997. Certain of the 
Company's subsidiaries have revolving credit facilities that total approximately 
$11.0 million under which $7.4 million have been borrowed at June 28, 1997. 
 
The Company believes that its cash and cash equivalents, its anticipated cash 
flow from operations, its ability to access public debt and equity markets, and 
the availability of funds under its existing credit agreements will provide it 
with liquidity sufficient to meet its currently foreseeable capital needs. 
 
Disclosure Regarding Forward-Looking Statements 
 
The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 provides a "safe harbor" 
for forward-looking statements. This report contains forward-looking statements 
based on current expectations that could be affected by the risks and 
uncertainties involved in the Company's business. These risks and uncertainties 
include, but are not limited to, the effect of economic and market conditions, 
the impact of the consolidation of healthcare practitioners, the impact of 
healthcare reform, 
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opportunities for acquisitions and the Company's ability to effectively 
integrate acquired companies, the acceptance and quality of software products, 
acceptance and ability to manage operations in foreign markets, possible 
disruptions in the Company's computer systems or telephone systems, possible 
increases in shipping rates or interruptions in shipping service, the level and 
volatility of interest rates and currency values, the impact of current or 
pending legislation and regulation, as well as the risks described from time to 
time in the Company's reports to the Securities and Exchange Commission, which 
include the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K/A for the year ended December 
28, 1996. Subsequent written or oral statements attributable to the Company or 
persons acting on its behalf are expressly qualified in their entirety by the 
cautionary statements in this Form 10-Q and those in the Company's reports 
previously filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission. 
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PART II.        OTHER INFORMATION 
 
Item 4 -- Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders 
 
At the Company's Annual Meeting of Stockhholders held on May 22, 1997, the 
stockholders of the Company took the following actions: 
 
(i)   Re-elected the following individuals to the Company's Board of Directors: 
 
      Stanley M. Bergman  (20,381,615 shares voting for; 259,401 shares voting 
                          aganist) 
      James P. Breslawski (20,382,215 shares voting for; 258,801 shares voting 
                          aganist) 
      Gerald A. Benjamin  (20,381,215 shares voting for; 259,801 shares voting 
                          aganist) 
      Leonard A. David    (20,382,215 shares voting for; 258,801 shares voting 
                          aganist) 
      Mark E. Mlotek      (20,382,215 shares voting for; 258,801 shares voting 
                          aganist) 
      Steven Paladino     (20,381,215 shares voting for; 259,801 shares voting 
                          aganist) 
      Barry J. Alperin    (20,381,115 shares voting for; 259,901 shares voting 
                          aganist) 
      Pamela Joseph       (20,379,515 shares voting for; 261,501 shares voting 
                          aganist) 
      Donald J. Kabat     (20,382,315 shares voting for; 258,701 shares voting 
                          aganist) 
      Marvin H. Schein    (20,381,215 shares voting for; 259,801 shares voting 
                          aganist) 
      Irving Shafran      (20,382,515 shares voting for; 258,501 shares voting 
                          aganist) 
 
(ii)  Amended the Company's By-laws to permit the directors to fill vacancies  
      that arise from time to time and to eliminate the provision preventing  
      the Board from amending or repealing By-laws adopted by the stockholders  
      (15,945,841 shares voting for; 3,016,084 shares voting against; 9,930 
      shares abstaining; 1,669,161 broker non-votes). 
 
(iii) Amended the Company's 1994 Stock Option Plan to increase the number of 
      shares issuable under the Plan by 1,600,000 shares and to increase the 
      maximum number of shares subject to options that may be granted to a 
      participant in any fiscal year of the Company (17,860,742 shares voting 
      for; 1,144,361 shares voting against; 13,081 shares abstaining; 1,622,832 
      broker non-votes). 
 
(iv)  Ratified the selection of BDO Seidman, LLP as the Company's independent 
      auditors for the year ended December 27, 1997 (20,616,611 shares voting 
      for; 13,060 shares voting against; 4,345 shares abstaining). 
 
      The Annual Meeting was reconvened on June 10, 1997, at which time a vote 
      was taken on a proposed amendment to the Company's Certificate of 
      Incorporation to eliminate the provision providing for a maximum number of 
      directors, to provide authority for the Board to establish from time to 
      time the number of directors, to eliminate the provision preventing the 
      Board from amending or repealing By-laws adopted by the Stockholders and 
      to eliminate certain supermajority voting requirements failed to receive 
      the necessary 80% supermajority vote (15,819,575 shares voting for; 
      3,184,160 shares voting against; 9,930 shares abstaining; 1,669,161 broker 
      non-votes). 
 
Item 6 -- Exhibits and Reports on Form 8-K 
 
   (a)    Exhibits. 
 
      10.95     The Agreement and Plan of Merger by and among the Company, HSI  
                Acquisition Corp. and Sullivan Dental Products, Inc. dated  
                August 3, 1997. 
 
      10.96     The Irrevocable Proxy and Termination Rights Agreement between  
                the Company and certain shareholders of Sullivan Dental  
                Products, Inc. dated August 3, 1997. 
 
       11.1     Computation of Earnings per Share 
 
       27.1     Financial Data Schedule 
 
   (b)    Reports on Form 8-K. 
 
                During the quarter ended June 28, 1997, the Company filed a 
                Current Report on Form 8-K, dated June 24, 1997, to restate its 
                Selected Financial Data, Management's Discussion and Analysis  
                of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and financial 
                statements and related exhibits, previously included in Form  
                10-K/A, to reflect the acquisition of all of the common stock 
                of Dentrix Systems, Inc., effective February 28, 1997, which  
                was accounted for under the "pooling of interests" method of  
                accounting. 
 
SIGNATURE 
 
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the 
Registrant has duly caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the 
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. 
   
                                             HENRY SCHEIN, INC. 



                                             (Registrant) 
 
Dated: August 12, 1997                       By:/s/ Steven Paladino 
                                             ---------------------- 
                                             Steven Paladino 
                                             Senior Vice President and 
                                             Chief Financial Officer 
                                             (Principal Financial Officer and 
                                             Principal Accounting Officer) 
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                         AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER 
 
                  AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER dated August 3, 1997, by and  
among Henry Schein, Inc., a Delaware corporation ("Parent"), HSI Acquisition 
Corp., a Wisconsin corporation and wholly-owned subsidiary of Parent ("Sub"), 
and Sullivan Dental Products, Inc., a Wisconsin corporation (the "Company"). 
 
                  The Boards of Directors of Parent and Sub and the Company  
deem it advisable and in the best interests of their respective stockholders 
that Parent acquire the Company pursuant to the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement, and, in furtherance of such acquisition, such Boards of Directors 
have approved the merger of Sub with and into the Company in accordance with the 
terms of this Agreement, the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware 
(the "DGCL") and the Wisconsin Business Corporation Law (the "WBCL"). 
 
                  Concurrently with the execution and delivery of this  
Agreement and as a condition and inducement to Parent's willingness to enter 
into this Agreement, certain holders of shares of the common stock, par value 
$.01 per share (the "Company Common Stock"), of the Company are entering into an 
agreement with Parent and Sub in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A (the 
"Irrevocable Proxy and Termination Rights Agreement") granting Parent the right 
to vote such shares of the Company Common Stock and granting Parent the right to 
receive a portion of the proceeds from the sale of such shares under certain 
circumstances in accordance with the terms set forth in the Irrevocable Proxy 
and Termination Rights Agreement. 
 
                  For federal income tax purposes, it is intended that the  
Merger (as defined in Section 1.1) shall qualify as a reorganization within the 
meaning of Section 368(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the 
"Code"). 
 
                  For accounting purposes, it is intended that the Merger shall 
be accounted for as a pooling of interests. 
 
                  In consideration of the foregoing and the respective  
representations, warranties, covenants and agreements set forth herein, the 
parties hereto agree as follows: 
 
 
                                  ARTICLE I 
 
                                  THE MERGER 
 
                  Section 1.1       The Merger.  In accordance with the  
provisions of this Agreement, the DGCL and the WBCL, at the Effective Time (as 
defined in Section 1.2), Sub shall be merged with and into the Company (the 
"Merger"), the separate existence of Sub shall thereupon cease, and the Company 
shall be the surviving corporation in the Merger (sometimes hereinafter called 
the "Surviving Corporation") and shall continue its corporate existence under 
the laws of the State of Wisconsin.  The Merger shall have the effects set forth 
in Section 1106 of the WBCL. 
 
 



 
 
                  Section 1.2       Effective Time of the Merger.  The Merger  
 
shall become effective at the time of filing of or at such later time specified 
in, a properly executed Certificate of Merger, in the form required by and 
executed in accordance with the WBCL, filed with the Secretary of State of the 
State of Wisconsin in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 180 of the  
WBCL.  Such filing shall be made as soon as practicable after the Closing (as 
defined in Section 1.3). When used in this Agreement, the term "Effective Time" 
shall mean the date and time at which the Merger shall become effective. 
 
                  Section 1.3       Closing.  The closing of the transactions  
contemplated by this Agreement (the "Closing") shall take place at the offices 
of Proskauer Rose LLP, 1585 Broadway, New York, New York, at 10:00 a.m., on the 
day on which all of the conditions set forth in Article VIII are satisfied or 
waived or on such other date and at such other time and place as Parent and the 
Company shall agree (such date, the "Closing Date"). 
 
 
                                  ARTICLE II 
 
                          THE SURVIVING CORPORATION 
 
                  Section 2.1       Articles of Incorporation.  The Articles of 
Incorporation of Sub in effect at the Effective Time shall be the Certificate of 
Incorporation of the Surviving Corporation until amended in accordance with 
applicable law, except that the name of the Surviving Corporation shall be 
"Sullivan Dental Products, Inc." 
 
                  Section 2.2       By-Laws.  The By-Laws of Sub as in effect  
at the Effective Time shall be the By-Laws of the Surviving Corporation until 
amended in accordance with applicable law. 
 
                  Section 2.3       Directors and Officers of Surviving  
Corporation. 
 
                  (a)      The directors of Sub at the Effective Time shall be  
the initial directors of the Surviving Corporation and shall hold office from 
the Effective Time until their respective successors are duly elected or 
appointed and qualified in the manner provided in the Certificate of 
Incorporation or By-Laws of the Surviving Corporation or as otherwise provided 
by law. 
 
                  (b)      The officers of the Company at the Effective Time  
shall be the initial officers of the Surviving Corporation and shall hold office 
from the Effective Time until their respective successors are duly elected or 
appointed and qualified in the manner provided in the Certificate of 
Incorporation or By-Laws of the Surviving Corporation, or as otherwise provided 
by law. 
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                                 ARTICLE III 
 
                             CONVERSION OF SHARES 
 
                  Section 3.1       Exchange Ratio.  At the Effective Time, by  
virtue of the Merger and without any action on the part of the holder thereof: 
 
                  (a)      Each share of Company Common Stock issued and  
outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time (other than shares to be 
cancelled in accordance with Section 3.1(b)) shall be converted into the right 
to receive 0.735 (the "Exchange Ratio") of a share of the common stock, par 
value $.01 per share, of Parent (the "Parent Common Stock"), payable upon the 
surrender of the certificate formerly representing such share of Company Common 
Stock. 
 
                  (b)      All shares of Company Common Stock that are held by  
the Company as treasury shares shall be cancelled and retired and cease to 
exist, and no securities of Parent or other consideration shall be delivered in 
exchange therefor. 
 
                  (c)      Each share of Common Stock, par value $.01 per  
share, of Sub (the "Sub Common Stock"), issued and outstanding immediately prior 
to the Effective Time shall be converted into and become one fully paid and 
nonassessable share of Common Stock, par value $.01 per share, of the Surviving 
Corporation. 
 
                  (d)      Each outstanding option to purchase Company Common   
Stock issued by the Company (each, a "Company Stock Option") shall be assumed by 
Parent as more specifically provided in Section 7.8. 
 
                  Section 3.2       Exchange of Company Common Stock;  
                                    Procedures. 
 
                  (a)      Prior to the Closing Date, Parent shall designate  
a bank or trust company reasonably acceptable to the Company to act as Exchange 
Agent hereunder (the "Exchange Agent"). As soon as practicable after the 
Effective Time, Parent shall cause the Transfer Agent to deposit with or for the 
account of the Exchange Agent stock certificates representing the number of 
shares of Parent Common Stock issuable pursuant to Section 3.1 in exchange for 
outstanding shares of Company Common Stock, which shares of Parent Common Stock 
shall be deemed to have been issued at the Effective Time. 
 
                  (b)      As soon as practicable after the Effective Time,  
Parent shall cause the Exchange Agent to mail to each holder of record of a 
certificate or certificates which immediately prior to the Effective Time 
represented outstanding shares of Company Common Stock (the "Certificates") that 
were converted pursuant to Section 3.1 into the right to receive shares of 
Parent Common Stock (i) a form of letter of transmittal specifying that delivery 
shall be effected, and risk of loss and title to the Certificates shall pass, 
only upon proper delivery of the Certificates to the Exchange Agent and (ii) 
instructions for use in surrendering such Certificates in exchange for 
certificates representing shares of Parent Common Stock.  Upon surrender of a 
Certificate for cancellation (or delivery of such customary affidavit with 
 
respect to a lost Certificate as the 
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Exchange Agent may reasonably require) to the Exchange Agent, together with  
such letter of transmittal, duly executed, the holder of such Certificate shall 
be entitled to receive in exchange therefor (x) a certificate representing that 
number of whole shares of Parent Common Stock which such holder has the right to 
receive pursuant to the provisions of this Article III and (y) cash in lieu of 
any fractional shares of Parent Common Stock to which such holder is entitled 
pursuant to Section 3.4, after giving effect to any required tax withholdings, 
and the Certificate so surrendered (or with respect to which a lost Certificate 
affidavit has been delivered as provided above) shall forthwith be cancelled.  
In the event of a transfer of ownership of Company Common Stock which is not 
registered in the transfer records of the Company, a certificate representing 
the proper number of shares of Parent Common Stock may be issued to a transferee 
if the Certificate representing such Company Common Stock is presented to the 
Exchange Agent, accompanied by all documents required to evidence and effect 
such transfer, and by evidence that any applicable stock transfer taxes have 
been paid.  Until surrendered as contemplated by this Section 3.2(b), each 
Certificate shall be deemed at any time after the Effective Time to represent 
only the right to receive upon such surrender a certificate representing shares 
of Parent Common Stock and cash in lieu of any fractional shares of Parent 
Common Stock as contemplated by this Article III. 
 
                  Section 3.3       Dividends; Transfer Taxes, Escheat.  No  
dividends or distributions that are declared on shares of Parent Common Stock 
will be paid to persons entitled to receive certificates representing shares of 
Parent Common Stock until such persons surrender their Certificates.  Upon such 
surrender, there shall be paid to the person in whose name the certificates 
representing such shares of Parent Common Stock shall be issued, any dividends 
or distributions with respect to such shares of Parent Common Stock which have a 
record date after the Effective Time and shall have become payable between the 
Effective Time and the time of such surrender. In no event shall the person 
entitled to receive such dividends or distributions be entitled to receive 
interest thereon.  Promptly following the date which is six months after the 
Effective Time, the Exchange Agent shall deliver to the Surviving Corporation 
all cash, certificates and other documents in its possession relating to the 
transactions described in this Agreement, and any holders of Company Common 
Stock who have not theretofore complied with this Article III shall look 
thereafter only to the Surviving Corporation for the shares of Parent Common 
Stock, any dividends or distributions thereon, and any cash in lieu of 
fractional shares thereof to which they are entitled pursuant to this Article 
III.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, neither the Exchange Agent nor any party 
hereto shall be liable to a holder of Company Common Stock for any shares of 
Parent Common Stock, any dividends or distributions thereon or any cash in lieu 
of fractional shares thereof delivered to a public official pursuant to 
applicable abandoned property, escheat or similar laws. 
 
                  Section 3.4       No Fractional Securities.  No certificates  
or scrip representing fractional shares of Parent Common Stock shall be issued 
upon the surrender for exchange of Certificates, and such fractional interests 
 
shall not entitle the owner thereof to vote or to any rights of a security 
holder.  In lieu of any such fractional securities, each holder of Company 
Common Stock who would otherwise have been entitled to a fraction of a share of 
Parent Common Stock upon surrender of such holder's Certificates will be 
entitled to receive, and Parent will timely provide (or cause to be provided) to 
the Exchange Agent sufficient funds to make, a cash payment (without interest) 
determined by multiplying (i) the fractional interest to which such holder would 
otherwise be entitled (after taking into account all shares of Company Common 
Stock then held of record by 
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such holder) and (ii) the average of the per share closing prices for Parent  
Common Stock on the NASDAQ National Market ("NASDAQ") for the five trading days 
immediately preceding the Effective Time.  It is understood (i) that the payment 
of cash in lieu of fractional shares of Parent Common Stock is solely for the 
purpose of avoiding the expense and inconvenience to Parent of issuing 
fractional shares and does not represent separately bargained-for consideration 
and (ii) that no holder of Company Common Stock will receive cash in lieu of 
fractional shares of Parent Common Stock in an amount greater than the value of 
one full share of Parent Common Stock. 
 
                  Section 3.5       Closing of Company Transfer Books.  At the  
Effective Time, the stock transfer books of the Company shall be closed and no 
transfer of shares of Company Common Stock shall thereafter be made.  If, after 
the Effective Time, Certificates are presented to the Surviving Corporation, 
they shall be cancelled and exchanged as provided in this Article III. 
 
                  Section 3.6       Further Assurances.  If, at any time after  
the Effective Time, the Surviving Corporation shall consider or be advised that 
any deeds, bills of sale, assignments, assurances or any other actions or things 
are necessary or desirable to vest, perfect or confirm of record or otherwise in 
the Surviving Corporation its right, title or interest in, to or under any of 
the rights, properties or assets of either of Sub or the Company acquired or to 
be acquired by the Surviving Corporation as a result of, or in connection with, 
the Merger or otherwise to carry out this Agreement, the officers of the 
Surviving Corporation shall be authorized to execute and deliver, in the name 
and on behalf of each of Sub and the Company or otherwise, all such deeds, bills 
of sale, assignments and assurances and to take and do, in such names and on 
such behalves or otherwise, all such other actions and things as may be 
necessary or desirable to vest, perfect or confirm any and all right, title and 
interest in, to and under such rights, properties or assets in the Surviving 
Corporation or otherwise to carry out the purposes of this Agreement. 
 
 
                                  ARTICLE IV 
 
                REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE COMPANY 
 
                  The Company represents and warrants to Parent and Sub as  
follows: 
 
 
                  Section 4.1       Organization.  The Company is a corporation 
duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the 
State of Wisconsin and has the corporate power to carry on its business as it is 
now being conducted or presently proposed to be conducted.  The Company is duly 
qualified as a foreign corporation to do business, and is in good standing, in 
each jurisdiction where the character of its properties owned or held under 
lease or the nature of its activities makes such qualification necessary, except 
where the failure to be so qualified will not have a material adverse effect, 
individually or in the aggregate, on the financial condition, results of 
operations, assets, liabilities or properties of the Company and its 
Subsidiaries taken as a whole, or on the ability of the Company to consummate 
the Merger and the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement (a "Company 
Material Adverse Effect").  As used in this Agreement, the term "Subsidiary" 
means, with respect to any party, any corporation or other organization, whether 
incorporated or unincorporated, of which (x) such party or any other Subsidiary 
of such party is a 
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general partner (excluding partnerships, the general partnership interests of  
which held by such party or any Subsidiary of such party do not have a majority 
of the voting interest in such partnership) or (y) at least a majority of the 
securities or other interests having by their terms ordinary voting power to 
elect a majority of the board of directors or others performing similar 
functions with respect to such corporation or other organization is directly or 
indirectly owned or controlled by such party and/or one or more of its 
Subsidiaries. 
 
                  Section 4.2       Capitalization. 
 
                  (a)      The authorized capital stock of the Company consists 
of 30,000,000 shares of Company Common Stock and 500,000 shares of preferred 
stock, par value $.01 per share of the Company (the "Company Preferred Stock").  
As of July 31, 1997, (i) approximately 10,027,951 shares of Company Common Stock 
were issued and outstanding, (ii) no shares of Company Preferred Stock were 
issued and outstanding, (iii) Company Stock Options to acquire approximately 
1,766,775 shares of Company Common Stock were outstanding under all stock option 
plans of the Company, and (iv) approximately 2,435,550 shares of Company Common 
Stock were reserved for issuance pursuant to the Company Stock Options and all 
other employee benefit plans of the Company.  All of the issued and outstanding 
shares of Company Common Stock are validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable. 
 
                  (b)      Except as disclosed in this Section 4.2 or as set  
forth on Schedule 4.2(b), (i) there is no outstanding right, subscription, 
warrant, call, option or other agreement or arrangement of any kind 
(collectively, "Rights") to purchase or otherwise to receive from the Company or 
any of its Subsidiaries any of the outstanding, authorized but unissued or 
treasury shares of the capital stock or any other security of the Company or any 
of its Subsidiaries or to require the Company or any of its Subsidiaries to 
purchase any such security, (ii) there is no outstanding security of any kind 
convertible into or exchangeable for such capital stock, and (iii) there is no 
voting trust or other agreement or understanding to which the Company or any of 
 
its Subsidiaries is a party or is bound with respect to the voting of the 
capital stock of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries.  The conversion of the 
Company Stock Options provided for in Section 7.8 of this Agreement is in 
accordance with the respective terms of the Company Stock Options and the plans 
under which they were issued. 
 
                  (c)      Since December 31, 1995, except as set forth on  
Schedule 4.2(c), the Company has not in any manner accelerated or provided for 
the acceleration of the vesting or exercisability of, or otherwise modified the 
terms and conditions applicable to, any of the Company Stock Options, whether 
set forth in the governing stock option plans of the Company, a stock option 
grant, award or other agreement or otherwise.  Except as set forth on Schedule 
4.2(c), none of the awards, grants or other agreements pursuant to which Company 
Stock Options were issued have provisions which accelerate the vesting or right 
to exercise such options upon the execution of this Agreement (including the 
documents attached as Exhibits hereto), the consummation of the transactions 
contemplated hereby (or thereby) or any other "change of control" events. 
 
                  Section 4.3       Company Subsidiaries.  Schedule 4.3  
contains a complete and accurate list of all Subsidiaries of the Company.  
Each Subsidiary of the Company that is a corporation is duly 
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organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of its  
jurisdiction of incorporation. Each Subsidiary of the Company that is a 
partnership or limited liability company is duly formed and validly existing 
under the laws of its jurisdiction of formation.  Each Subsidiary of the Company 
has the corporate, partnership or limited liability company power, as the case 
may be, to carry on its business as it is now being conducted or presently 
proposed to be conducted.  Each Subsidiary of the Company is duly qualified as a 
foreign corporation, foreign partnership or a foreign limited liability company, 
as the case may be, authorized to do business, and is in good standing, in each 
jurisdiction where the character of its properties owned or held under lease or 
the nature of its activities makes such qualification necessary, except where 
the failure to be so qualified will not have a Company Material Adverse Effect.  
All of the outstanding shares of capital stock of the Subsidiaries of the 
Company that are corporations are validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable.  
Except as set forth in the Company SEC Reports (as hereinafter defined), all of 
the outstanding shares of capital stock of, or other membership or ownership 
interests in, each Subsidiary of the Company are owned by the Company or a 
Subsidiary of the Company, in each case free and clear of any liens, pledges, 
security interests, claims, charges or other encumbrances of any kind whatsoever 
("Liens"). 
 
                  Section 4.4       Authority Relative to this Agreement.  The  
Company has the requisite corporate power and authority to execute and deliver  
this Agreement and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby.  The 
execution and delivery of this Agreement by the Company and the consummation by 
the Company of the transactions contemplated on its part hereby have been duly 
authorized by the Company's Board of Directors and, except for the approval of 
its stockholders to be sought at the stockholders meeting contemplated by 
 
Section 7.4(a) with respect to this Agreement, no other corporate proceedings on 
the part of the Company are necessary to authorize this Agreement or for the 
Company to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby.  This Agreement has 
been duly and validly executed and delivered by the Company and constitutes a 
valid and binding agreement of the Company, enforceable against the Company in 
accordance with its terms. 
 
                  Section 4.5       Consents and Approvals; No Violations.   
Neither the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement by the 
Company, nor the consummation by the Company of the transactions contemplated 
hereby, will (i) conflict with or result in any breach of any provisions of the 
charter, by-laws or other organizational documents of the Company or any of its 
Subsidiaries, (ii) require a filing with, or a permit, authorization, consent or 
approval of, any federal, state, local or foreign court, arbitral tribunal, 
administrative agency or commission or other governmental or other regulatory 
authority or administrative agency or commission (a "Governmental Entity"), 
except in connection with, or in order to comply with, the applicable provisions 
of the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976, as amended (the 
"HSR Act"), the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), state 
securities or "blue sky" laws, the By-Laws of the National Association of 
Securities Dealers, Inc. (the "NASD") and the filing and recordation of a 
Certificate of Merger as required by the WBCL, (iii) except as set forth on 
Schedule 4.5, result in a violation or breach of, or constitute (with or without 
due notice or lapse of time or both) a default (or give rise to any right of 
termination, cancellation or acceleration) under, or result in the creation of a 
Lien on any property or asset of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries pursuant 
to, any of the terms, conditions or provisions of any material note, bond, 
mortgage, indenture, license, contract, 
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agreement or other instrument or obligation (each, a "Contract") to which  
the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is a party or by which any of them or any 
of their properties or assets may be bound or (iv) violate any material law, 
order, writ, injunction, decree, statute, rule or regulation of any Governmental 
Entity applicable to the Company, any of its Subsidiaries or any of their 
properties or assets. 
 
                  Section 4.6       Reports and Financial Statements.  The  
Company has timely filed all reports required to be filed with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") pursuant to the Exchange Act or the 
Securities Act since January 1, 1995 (collectively, the "Company SEC Reports"), 
and has previously made available to Parent true and complete copies of all such 
Company SEC Reports.  Such Company SEC Reports, as of their respective dates, 
complied in all material respects with the applicable requirements of the 
Securities Act and the Exchange Act, as the case may be, and none of such 
Company SEC Reports contained any untrue statement of a material fact or omitted 
to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the 
statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, 
not misleading.  The consolidated financial statements of the Company included 
in the Company SEC Reports have been prepared in accordance with United States 
 
generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP") consistently applied 
throughout the periods indicated (except as otherwise noted therein) and fairly 
present the consolidated financial position of the Company and its consolidated 
Subsidiaries as at the dates thereof and the consolidated results of operations 
and cash flows of the Company and its consolidated Subsidiaries as of the 
respective dates, and for the respective periods, presented therein, except that 
in the case of the unaudited consolidated financial statements included in any 
Form 10-Q, the presentation and disclosures conform with the applicable rules of 
the Exchange Act, but include all adjustments necessary to conform to GAAP 
requirements with respect to interim financial statements.  Except as set forth 
on Schedule 4.6, since January 1, 1996, there has been no change in any of the 
significant accounting (including tax accounting) policies, practices or 
procedures of the Company or any of its consolidated Subsidiaries.  References 
in this Agreement to the Company's consolidated financial statements shall be 
deemed to include the Company's financial statements with respect to any period 
or as of any date during which or which the Company did not have any 
consolidated Subsidiaries. 
 
                  Section 4.7       Absence of Certain Changes or Events;  
Material Contracts.  Except as set forth on Schedule 4.7 or the Companys SEC 
Reports, since December 31, 1996 (i) neither the Company nor any of its 
Subsidiaries has conducted its business and operations other than in the 
ordinary course of business and consistent with past practices or taken any 
actions that, if it had been in effect, would have violated or been inconsistent 
with the provisions of Section 6.1 and (ii) there has not been any fact, event, 
circumstance or change affecting or relating to the Company or any of its 
Subsidiaries which has had or is reasonably likely to have a Company Material 
Adverse Effect. Except as set forth on Schedule 4.7, the transactions 
contemplated by this Agreement will not constitute a change of control under or 
require the consent from or the giving of notice to a third party pursuant to 
the terms, conditions or provisions of any material Contract to which Parent or 
any of its Subsidiaries is a party. 
 
                  Section 4.8       Litigation.  Except for litigation  
disclosed on Schedule 4.8, in the notes to the financial statements included in 
the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year 
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ended December 31, 1996 or in the Company SEC Reports filed subsequent thereto, 
there is no suit, action, proceeding or investigation pending or, to the Actual 
Knowledge of the Company, threatened against the Company or any of its 
Subsidiaries or any of their respective properties, the outcome of which is 
reasonably likely to have a Company Material Adverse Effect; nor is there any 
judgment, decree, injunction, ruling or order of any Governmental Entity 
outstanding against the Company or any of its Subsidiaries having, or which is 
reasonably likely to have a Company Material Adverse Effect.  The term Actual 
Knowledge of the Company shall mean the actual knowledge of any of Robert J. 
Sullivan, Robert E. Doering, Timothy J. Sullivan, Kevin J. Ackeret, Geoffrey A. 
Reichardt, David A. Steck and Kenneth A. Schwing. 
 
                  Section 4.9       Absence of Undisclosed Liabilities.  Except  
 
for liabilities or obligations which are accrued or reserved against in the 
Company's consolidated financial statements (or disclosed in the notes thereto) 
included in the Company SEC Reports or which were incurred after December 31, 
1996 in the ordinary course of business and consistent with past practice, and 
except as set forth on Schedule 4.9, none of the Company and its Subsidiaries 
has any liabilities or obligations (whether absolute, accrued, contingent or 
otherwise) of a nature required by GAAP to be reflected in a consolidated 
balance sheet (or disclosed in the notes thereto) or which may, to the Actual 
Knowledge of the Company, have a Company Material Adverse Effect. 
 
                  Section 4.10      No Default.  Except as set forth on  
Schedule 4.10, neither the Company nor any Subsidiary of the Company is in 
default or violation (and no event has occurred which with notice or the lapse 
of time or both would constitute a default or violation) of any term, condition 
or provision of (i) its charter, by-laws or comparable organizational documents, 
(ii) any material Contract to which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is a 
party or by which they or any of their properties or assets may be bound, or 
(iii) any material order, writ, injunction, decree, statute, rule or regulation 
of any Governmental Entity applicable to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries. 
 
                  Section 4.11      Taxes. 
 
                  (a)      The Company has heretofore delivered or will make  
available to Parent true, correct and complete copies of the consolidated 
federal, state, local and foreign income, franchise sales and other Tax Returns 
(as hereinafter defined) filed by the Company and its Subsidiaries for each of 
the Company's years ended December 31, 1995, 1994, 1993 and 1992, inclusive.  
Except as set forth on Schedule 4.11, the Company has duly filed, and each 
Subsidiary has duly filed, all material federal, state, local and foreign 
income, franchise, sales and other Tax Returns required to be filed by the 
Company or any of its Subsidiaries.  All such Tax Returns are true, correct and 
complete, in all material respects, and the Company and its Subsidiaries have 
duly paid, all Taxes (as hereinafter defined) shown on such Tax Returns and has 
made adequate provision for payment of all accrued but unpaid material Taxes 
anticipated in respect of all periods since the periods covered by such Tax 
Returns.  Except as set forth on Schedule 4.11, all material deficiencies 
assessed as a result of any examination of Tax Returns of the Company or any of 
its Subsidiaries by federal, state, local or foreign tax authorities have been 
paid or reserved on the financial statements of the Company in accordance with 
GAAP consistently applied, and true, correct and complete copies of all revenue 
agent's reports, "30-day letters," or "90-day letters" or similar written 
statements proposing or asserting any Tax deficiency against the Company or any 
of its Subsidiaries for any 
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open year have been heretofore delivered to Parent.  The Company has heretofore 
delivered or will make available to Parent true, correct and complete copies of 
all written tax-sharing agreements and written descriptions of all such 
unwritten agreement or arrangements to which the Company or any of its 
Subsidiaries is a party.  Except as set forth in Schedule 4.11, no material 
issue has been raised during the past five years by any federal, state, local or 
 
foreign taxing authority which, if raised with regard to any other period not so 
examined, could reasonably be expected to result in a proposed material 
deficiency for any other period not so examined.  Except as disclosed in 
Schedule 4.11 hereof, neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries has 
granted any extension or waiver of the statutory period of limitations 
applicable to any claim for any material Taxes.  The consolidated federal income 
tax returns of the Company and its Subsidiaries have been examined by and 
settled with the Internal Revenue Service (the "Service") for all years through 
1987.  Except as set forth in Schedule 4.11, (i) neither the Company nor any of 
the Company Subsidiaries is a party to any agreement, contract or arrangement 
that would result, separately or in the aggregate, in the payment of any "excess 
parachute payments" within the meaning of Section 28OG of the Code; (ii) no 
consent has been filed under Section 341(f) of the Code with respect to any of 
the Company or the Subsidiaries of the Company; (iii) neither the Company nor 
any of the Subsidiaries of the Company has participated in, or cooperated with, 
an international boycott within the meaning of Section 999 of the Code; and (iv) 
neither the Company nor any of the Subsidiaries of the Company has issued or 
assumed any corporate acquisition indebtedness, as defined in Section 279(b) of 
the Code.  The Company and each Subsidiary of the Company have complied (and 
until the Effective Time will comply) in all material respects with all 
applicable laws, rules and regulations relating to the payment and withholding 
of Taxes (including, without limitation, withholding of Taxes pursuant to 
Sections 1441 and 1442 of the Code or similar provisions under any foreign laws) 
and have, within the time and in the manner prescribed by law, withheld from 
employee wages and paid over to the proper governmental authorities all amounts 
required to be so withheld and paid over under all applicable laws. 
 
                  (b)      For purposes of this Agreement, the term "Taxes"  
shall mean all taxes, charges, fees, levies, duties, imposts or other 
assessments, including, without limitation, income, gross receipts, excise, 
property, sales, use, transfer, gains, license, payroll, withholding, capital 
stock and franchise taxes, imposed by the United States, or any state, local or 
foreign government or subdivision or agency thereof, including any interest, 
penalties or additions thereto.  For purposes of this Agreement, the term "Tax 
Return" shall mean any report, return or other information or document required 
to be supplied to a taxing authority in connection with Taxes. 
 
                  Section 4.12      Title to Properties; Encumbrances.  Except  
as described in the following sentence, each of the Company and its Subsidiaries 
has good, valid and marketable title to, or a valid leasehold interest in, all 
of its material properties and assets (real, personal and mixed, tangible and 
intangible), including, without limitation, all the properties and assets 
reflected in the balance sheet of the Company as of March 31, 1997 included in 
the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended on such date 
(except for properties and assets disposed of in the ordinary course of business 
and consistent with past practices since March 31, 1997).  None of such 
properties or assets are subject to any Liens (whether absolute, accrued, 
contingent or otherwise), except (i) as specifically set forth in the Company 
SEC Reports and (ii) minor imperfections of title and encumbrances, if any, 
which are not substantial in amount, do not materially detract from the 
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value of the property or assets subject thereto and do not impair the operations 
of any of the Company and its Subsidiaries. 
 
                  Section 4.13      Intellectual Property. 
 
                  (a)      Except as set forth on Schedule 4.13(a), the Company  
and its Subsidiaries are the sole and exclusive owners of all material patents, 
patent applications, patent rights, trademarks, trademark rights, trade names, 
trade name rights, copyrights, service marks, trade secrets, registrations for 
and applications for registration of trademarks, service marks and copyrights, 
technology and know-how, rights in computer software  and other proprietary 
rights and information and all technical and user manuals and documentation made 
or used in connection with any of the foregoing, used or held for use in 
connection with the businesses of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries as 
currently conducted (collectively, the "Intellectual Property"), free and clear 
of all Liens except as set forth on Schedule 4.13(a) and except minor 
imperfections of title and encumbrances, if any, which are not substantial in 
amount, do not materially detract from the value of the Intellectual Property 
subject thereto and do not impair the operations of any of the Company and its 
Subsidiaries. 
 
                  (b)      All grants, registrations and applications for  
Intellectual Property that are used in and are material to the conduct of the 
Business (as hereinafter defined) (i) are valid, subsisting, in proper form and 
enforceable, and have been duly maintained, including the submission of all 
necessary filings and fees in accordance with the legal and administrative 
requirements of the appropriate jurisdictions and (ii) have not lapsed, expired 
or been abandoned, and no grant, registration or license therefor is the subject 
of any legal or governmental proceeding before any registration authority in any 
jurisdiction. 
 
                  (c)      Each of the Company and its Subsidiaries owns or has 
the right to use all of the material Intellectual Property used by it or held 
for use by it in connection with its business.  To the Actual Knowledge of the 
Company, there are no conflicts with or infringements of any Intellectual 
Property by any third party.  The conduct of the businesses of the Company and 
its Subsidiaries as currently conducted (collectively, the "Business") does not 
conflict with or infringe in any way any proprietary right of any third party, 
which conflict or infringement would have a Company Material Adverse Effect, and 
there is no claim, suit, action or proceeding pending or, to the Actual 
Knowledge of the Company, threatened against the Company or any of its 
Subsidiaries (i) alleging any such conflict or infringement with any third 
party's proprietary rights, or (ii) challenging the ownership, use, validity or 
enforceability of the Intellectual Property. 
 
                  Section 4.14      Compliance with Applicable Law.  Except as  
set forth on Schedule 4.14 or as disclosed in the Company SEC Reports, (i) the 
Company and its Subsidiaries hold, and are in compliance with the terms of, all 
material permits, licenses, exemptions, orders and approvals of all Governmental 
Entities necessary for the current and proposed conduct of their respective 
businesses ("Company Permits"), except for failures to hold or to comply with 
such permits, licenses, exemptions, orders and approvals which would not have a 
 
Company Material Adverse Effect, (ii) no fact exists or event has occurred, and 
no action or proceeding is pending or, to the Actual Knowledge of the Company 
threatened, that has a reasonable possibility of resulting in a revocation, 
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nonrenewal, termination, suspension or other material impairment of any material 
Company Permits, (iii) the businesses of the Company and its Subsidiaries are 
not being conducted in material violation of any applicable law, ordinance, 
regulation, judgment, decree or order of any Governmental Entity ("Applicable 
Law"), and (iv) to the Actual Knowledge of the Company (x) no investigation or 
review by any Governmental Entity with respect to the Company or its 
Subsidiaries is pending or threatened, and (y) no Governmental Entity has 
indicated an intention to conduct the same. 
 
                  Section 4.15      Information in Disclosure Documents and  
Registration Statement. None of the information to be supplied by or on behalf 
of the Company for inclusion in (i) the Registration Statement to be filed with 
the SEC by Parent on Form S-4 under the Securities Act for the purpose of 
registering the shares of Parent Common Stock to be issued in connection with 
the Merger (the "Registration Statement") or (ii) the joint proxy statement to 
be distributed in connection with Parent's and the Company's meetings of 
stockholders to vote upon this Agreement (the "Proxy Statement") will, in the 
case of the Registration Statement, at the time it becomes effective, at the 
time of the filing of any post-effective amendment thereto and at the Effective 
Time, and, in the case of the Proxy Statement or any amendments thereof or 
supplements thereto, at the time of the mailing of the Proxy Statement and any 
amendments or supplements thereto, and at the respective times of the meetings 
of stockholders of the Company and Parent to be held in connection with the 
Merger, contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any 
material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the 
statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they are made, not 
misleading.  The Proxy Statement will comply as to form in all material respects 
with the applicable provisions of the Exchange Act, and the rules and 
regulations promulgated thereunder, except that no representation is made by the 
Company with respect to statements made therein based on information supplied by 
Parent or its representatives for inclusion in the Proxy Statement or with 
respect to information concerning Parent or any of its Subsidiaries incorporated 
by reference in the Proxy Statement. 
 
                  Section 4.16      Employee Benefit Plans; ERISA. 
 
                  (a)      Schedule 4.16 hereto sets forth a true and complete  
list of each employee benefit plan, within the meaning of Section 3(3) of the 
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended (ERISA), and any 
other material employee benefit plan, arrangement or agreement, that is 
maintained, or was maintained at any time during the five (5) calendar years 
preceding the date of this Agreement (the "Company Plans"), by the Company or by 
any trade or business, whether or not incorporated (a "Company ERISA 
Affiliate"), which together with the Company would be deemed a "single employer" 
within the meaning of Section 4001 of ERISA or under Section 414(b), (c), (m) or 
(o) of the Code.  True and complete copies of each of the Company Plans and 
 
related documents have been delivered to the Parent. 
 
                  (b)      Each of the Company Plans is and has been maintained 
and operated in compliance with its terms and applicable law, including without 
limitation, ERISA and the Code; each of the Company Plans intended to be 
"qualified" within the meaning of Section 401(a) of the Code is so qualified and 
has been qualified since its inception. 
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                  (c)      None of the Company, any Company ERISA Affiliate, or 
any of their respective predecessors has ever contributed to, contributes to, 
has ever been required to contribute to, or otherwise participated in or 
participates in or in any way, directly or indirectly, has any liability with 
respect to any plan subject to Section 412 of the Code, Section 302 of ERISA or 
Title IV of ERISA, including, without limitation any, "multiemployer plan" 
(within the meaning of Sections (3)(37) or 4001(a)(3) of ERISA or Section 414(f) 
of the Code), or any single employer pension plan and no Company Plan is a 
multiple employer plan described in Section 413 of the Code.  All contributions 
or other amounts payable by the Company as of the Effective Time with respect to 
each Company Plan in respect of current or prior plan years have been either 
paid or accrued on the balance sheet of the Company.  There are no pending, 
threatened or, to the Actual Knowledge of the Company, anticipated claims, 
lawsuits, arbitrations or other actions (other than non-material routine claims 
for benefits) by, on behalf of or against any of the Company Plans, any trustee 
or fiduciaries thereof  or any trusts related thereto.  No Company Plan 
currently is under audit or investigation by the Internal Revenue Service, U.S. 
Department of Labor, or any other governmental authority and no such completed 
audit, if any, has resulted in the imposition of any tax or penalty.  With 
respect to each Company Plan that is funded mostly or partially through an 
insurance policy, neither the Company nor any Company ERISA Affiliate has any 
material liability in the nature of retroactive rate adjustment, loss sharing 
arrangement or other actual or contingent material liability arising wholly or 
partially out of events occurring on or before the Effective Time. 
 
                  (d)      Neither the Company nor any Company ERISA Affiliate, 
nor any Company Plan, nor any trust created thereunder, nor any trustee or 
administrator thereof has engaged in a transaction in connection with which the 
Company or any Company ERISA Affiliate, any Company Plan, any such trust, or any 
trustee or administrator thereof, or any party dealing with any Company Plan or 
any such trust that is a "prohibited transaction," within the meaning of Section 
4975 of the Code and Section 406 of ERISA, other than a prohibited transaction 
that has been corrected and with respect to which all taxes and penalties have 
been paid prior to the date hereof.  Except as set forth on Schedule 4.16, no 
Company Plan provides benefits (whether or not insured), with respect to current 
or former employees of the Company or any Company ERISA Affiliate beyond their 
retirement or other termination of service other than benefits under any 
"employee pension plan," as that term is defined in Section 3(2) of ERISA, 
qualified under Section 401(a) of the Code or under Section 4980B of the Code.  
Neither the Company, any Company ERISA Affiliate, nor any officer or employee 
thereof, has made any promises or commitments, whether legally binding or not, 
to create any additional plan, agreement, or arrangement, or to modify or change 
 
any existing Company Plan.  The consummation of the transactions contemplated by 
this Agreement will not give rise to any liability, including, without 
limitation, liability for severance pay, unemployment compensation, termination 
pay, or withdrawal liability, or accelerate the time of payment or vesting or 
increase the amount of compensation or benefits due to any employee, director, 
shareholder, or beneficiary of the Company (whether current, former, or retired) 
or their beneficiaries solely by reason of such transactions.  Neither the 
Company nor any Company ERISA Affiliate has any material unfunded liabilities 
pursuant to any Company Plan that is not intended to be qualified under Section 
401(a) of the Code. 
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                  Section 4.17      Environmental Laws and Regulations. 
 
                  (a)      Except as set forth on Schedule 4.17(a): (i) the  
Company and its Subsidiaries are and have been, in all material respects, in 
compliance with, and there are no outstanding written allegations or, to the 
Actual Knowledge of the Company, oral allegations by any person or entity that 
the Company or its Subsidiaries has not been in compliance with, all material 
applicable laws, rules, regulations, common law, ordinances, decrees, orders or 
other binding legal requirements relating to pollution (including the treatment, 
storage and disposal of hazardous wastes or materials and the remediation of 
releases and threatened releases of hazardous materials or wastes), the 
preservation of the environment, and the exposure to hazardous wastes or 
materials in the environment or work place ("Environmental Laws") and (ii) the 
Company and its Subsidiaries currently hold all material permits, licenses, 
registrations and other governmental authorizations (including exemptions, 
waivers, and the like) and financial assurance required under Environmental Laws 
for the Company and its Subsidiaries to operate their businesses as currently 
conducted. 
 
                  (b)      Except as set forth on Schedule 4.17(b), (i) there  
is no friable asbestos-containing material in or on any real property currently 
owned, leased or operated by the Company or its Subsidiaries and (ii) there are 
and, to the Actual Knowledge of the Company, have been no underground storage 
tanks (whether or not required to be registered under any applicable law), 
dumps, landfills, lagoons, surface impoundments, injection wells or other land 
disposal units in or on any property currently owned, leased or operated by the 
Company or its Subsidiaries. 
 
                  (c)      Except as set forth on Schedule 4.17(c), (i) neither 
the Company nor its Subsidiaries has received (x) any written communication from 
any person stating or alleging that any of them may be a potentially responsible 
party under any Environmental Law (including, without limitation, the Federal 
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of 1980, 
as amended) with respect to any actual or alleged environmental contamination or 
(y) any request for information under any Environmental Law from any 
Governmental Entity with respect to any actual or alleged material environmental 
contamination; and (ii) neither the Company, nor its Subsidiaries nor any 
Governmental Entity is conducting or has conducted (or, to the Actual Knowledge 
of the Company, is threatening to conduct) any environmental remediation or 
 
investigation. 
 
                  (d)      To the Actual Knowledge of the Company, all real  
properties formerly owned, used, leased, occupied, managed or operated by the 
Company or its Subsidiaries complied, in all material respects, with the 
Environmental Laws during the Company's or its Subsidiaries' tenure thereat, and 
there are no environmental liabilities associated therewith that are reasonably 
likely to result in a Company Material Adverse Effect. 
 
                  Section 4.18      Vote Required.  The affirmative vote of the 
holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of the Company Common Stock are 
the only votes of the holders of any class or series of the Company's capital 
stock necessary to approve the Merger.  The Board of Directors of the Company 
(at a meeting duly called and held) has unanimously (i) approved this Agreement 
and the Irrevocable Proxy and Termination Rights Agreement, (ii) determined that 
the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby are fair to and in the best 
interests of the holders of Company 
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Common Stock and (iii) determined to recommend this Agreement, the Merger and 
the other transactions contemplated hereby to such holders for approval and 
adoption.  The resolutions of the Company's Board of Directors taking the 
actions described in the preceding sentence have not been rescinded, withdrawn, 
amended or otherwise modified, remain in full force and effect, and constitute 
the only action of such Board of Directors with respect to the Merger or the 
other transactions contemplated by this Agreement. 
 
                  Section 4.19      Opinion of Financial Advisor.  The Board of  
Directors of the Company has received the opinion of Cleary Gull Reiland & 
McDevitt, Inc. ("Cleary Gull"), dated August 1, 1997, substantially to the 
effect that the consideration to be received in the Merger by the holders of 
Company Common Stock is fair to such holders from a financial point of view, a 
copy of which opinion has been delivered to Parent. 
 
                  Section 4.20      Accounting Matters.  None of the Company,  
any of its Subsidiaries or, to the Actual Knowledge of the Company, any of their 
respective directors, officers or stockholders, has taken any action which would 
prevent the accounting for the Merger as a pooling of interests in accordance 
with Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 16, the interpretative releases 
pursuant thereto and the pronouncements of the SEC. 
 
                  Section 4.21      WBCL Sections 1131, 1134 and 1141.  Prior  
to the date hereof, the Board of Directors of the Company has approved this 
Agreement and the Irrevocable Proxy and Termination Rights Agreement, and the 
Merger and the other transactions contemplated hereby and thereby, and such 
approval is sufficient to render inapplicable to the Merger and any of such 
other transactions the provisions of Sections 1131, 1134 and 1141 of the WBCL. 
 
                  Section 4.22      Labor Matters.  Neither the Company nor any 
of its Subsidiaries is a party to, or bound by, any collective bargaining 
agreement, contract or other understanding with a labor union or labor 
 
organization and, to the Actual Knowledge of the Company, there is no activity 
involving any employees of the Company or its Subsidiaries seeking to certify a 
collective bargaining unit or engaging in any other organizational activity. 
 
                  Section 4.23      Affiliate Transactions.  Except as set  
forth in Schedule 4.23 or as disclosed in the Company SEC Reports, there are no, 
and since January 1, 1996 there have not been any, material Contracts or other 
transactions between the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, on the one hand, 
and any (i) officer or director of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, (ii) 
record or beneficial owner of five percent or more of the voting securities of 
the Company or (iii) affiliate (as such term is defined in Regulation 12b-2 
promulgated under the Exchange Act) of any such officer, director or beneficial 
owner, on the other hand. 
 
                  Section 4.24      Brokers.  Except for its financial advisor, 
Cleary Gull, no broker, finder or financial advisor is entitled to any 
brokerage, finder's or other fee or commission in connection with the Merger or 
the transactions contemplated by this Agreement based upon arrangements made by 
or on behalf of the Company and the Company has disclosed to Parent the material 
terms of the agreement pursuant to which Cleary Gull is entitled to its fee. 
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                  Section 4.25      Tax Matters.  The Company knows of no fact  
or circumstance which is reasonably likely to cause the Merger to be treated 
other than as a tax-free reorganization under Section 368(a) of the Code. 
 
                  Section 4.26      Accounts Receivable.  All of the accounts  
and notes receivable of the Company and its Subsidiaries set forth on the books 
and records of the Company (net of the applicable reserves reflected on the 
books and records of the Company and in the financial statements included in the 
Company SEC Reports) (i) represent sales actually made in the ordinary course of 
business for goods or services delivered or rendered to unaffiliated customers 
in bona fide arms length transactions, (ii) constitute valid claims, and (iii) 
are good and collectible at the aggregate recorded amounts thereof (net of such 
reserves) without right of recourse, defense, deduction, return of goods, 
counterclaim, or offset and have been or will be collected in  the ordinary 
course of business and consistent with past experience. 
 
                  Section 4.27      Inventory.  All inventory of the Company  
and its Subsidiaries is (net of the applicable reserves reflected on the books 
and records of the Company and in the financial statements included in the 
Company SEC reports) of merchantable quality, free of defects in workmanship or 
design and is usable and saleable at normal profit margins and in accordance 
with historical sales practices in the ordinary course of the business of the 
Company and its Subsidiaries. The inventory (net of such reserves) does not 
include any items which are obsolete, damaged, excessive, below standard quality 
or slow moving (i.e., items that are for discontinued or expected to be 
discontinued product lines, or items that have not been used or sold within 12 
months prior to the date hereof). 
 
 
 
                                  ARTICLE V 
 
                   REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF PARENT 
 
                  Parent represents and warrants to the Company as follows: 
 
                  Section 5.1       Organization.  Parent is a corporation duly 
organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of 
Delaware and has the corporate power to carry on its business as it is now being 
conducted or presently proposed to be conducted.  Parent is duly qualified as a 
foreign corporation to do business, and is in good standing, in each 
jurisdiction where the character of its properties owned or held under lease or 
the nature of its activities make such qualification necessary, except where the 
failure to be so qualified will not have a material adverse effect individually 
or in the aggregate, on the financial condition, results of operations, assets, 
liabilities or properties of Parent and its Subsidiaries taken as a whole or on 
the ability of Parent to consummate the Merger and the other transactions 
contemplated by this Agreement (a "Parent Material Adverse Effect").  Sub is a 
corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws 
of the State of  Wisconsin and Parent has delivered to Company a copy of (i) the 
Articles of Incorporation of Sub and (ii) the By-Laws of Sub, each as in effect 
as of the date of this Agreement.  Sub has not engaged in any business (other 
than in connection with this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby) 
since the date of its incorporation.  Schedule 
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5.17 contains a complete and accurate list of all Subsidiaries of Parent (other 
than inactive subsidiaries the assets of which are de minimis).  The Sub has no 
subsidiaries. 
 
                  Section 5.2       Capitalization. 
 
                  (a)      The authorized capital stock of Parent consists of  
60,000,000 shares of Parent Common Stock and 1,000,000 shares of Preferred 
Stock, par value $0.01 per share ("Parent Preferred Stock"), of Parent.  As of 
July 31, 1997, (i) approximately 24,200,000 shares of Parent Common Stock were 
issued and outstanding, (ii) no shares of Parent Preferred Stock were issued and 
outstanding, (iii) options to acquire approximately 1,300,000 shares of Parent 
Common Stock (the "Parent Stock Options") were outstanding under all stock 
option plans of Parent, and (iv) approximately 2,230,000 shares of Parent Common 
Stock were reserved for issuance pursuant to the Parent Stock Options and all 
other employee benefit plans of Parent.  All of the outstanding shares of 
capital stock of Parent are, and the shares of Parent Common Stock issuable in 
exchange for shares of Company Common Stock at the Effective Time in accordance 
with this Agreement will be, when so issued, duly authorized, validly issued, 
fully paid and nonassessable.  The numbers for outstanding shares, options and 
shares reserved for issuance in connection with the exercise of options set 
forth in this Section 5.2 do not reflect the shares and options issued or 
reserved for issuance in connection with Parent's acquisition of Micro 
Bio-Medics, Inc., which acquisition was consummated on August 1, 1997. 
 
 
                  (b)      The authorized capital stock of Sub consists of  
1,000 shares of Sub Common Stock, all of which shares, as of the date hereof, 
were issued and outstanding.  All of such outstanding shares are owned by 
Parent, and are validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable. 
 
                  (c)      Except as disclosed in this Section 5.2, (i) there  
are no outstanding Rights to purchase or otherwise to receive from Parent, Sub 
or any of Parents other Subsidiaries any of the outstanding authorized but 
unissued or treasury shares of the capital stock or any other security of Parent 
or Sub, (ii) there is no outstanding security of any kind convertible into or 
exchangeable for such capital stock, and (iii) there is no voting trust or other 
agreement or understanding to which Parent or Sub is a party or is bound with 
respect to the voting of the capital stock of Parent or Sub. 
 
                  (d)      Parent and its subsidiaries do not beneficially own 
any shares of the Company's Common Stock and, to Parent's knowledge, none of 
its affiliates beneficially owns any shares of the Companys Common Stock. 
 
                  Section 5.3       Authority Relative to this Agreement.  Each 
of Parent and Sub has the requisite corporate power and authority to execute and 
deliver this Agreement and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby.  
The execution and delivery of this Agreement by each of Parent and Sub and the 
consummation by each of Parent and Sub of the transactions contemplated on its 
part hereby have been duly authorized by their respective Boards of Directors, 
and by Parent as the sole stockholder of Sub, and, except for the approval of 
Parent's stockholders to be sought at the stockholders' meeting contemplated by 
Section 7.4(b), no other corporate proceedings on the part of Parent or Sub are 
necessary to authorize this Agreement or for Parent and Sub to consummate the 
transactions contemplated hereby.  This Agreement has been duly and validly 
executed and delivered 
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by each of Parent and Sub and constitutes a valid and binding agreement of each 
of Parent and Sub, enforceable against Parent and Sub in accordance with its 
terms. 
 
                  Section 5.4       Consents and Approvals No Violations.   
Neither the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement by Parent or 
Sub, nor the consummation by Parent or Sub of the transactions contemplated 
hereby will (i) conflict with or result in any breach of any provisions of the 
Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation or By-Laws of Parent or the 
Articles of Incorporation or By-Laws of Sub, (ii) require a filing with, or a 
permit, authorization, consent or approval of, any Governmental Entity except in 
connection with, or in order to comply with, the applicable provisions of the 
HSR Act, the Securities Act, the Exchange Act, state securities or "blue sky" 
laws, the By-Laws of the NASD, and the filing and recordation of a Certificate 
of Merger as required by the WBCL, (iii) except as set forth on Schedule 5.4 
hereto, result in a violation or breach of, or constitute (with or without due 
notice or lapse of time or both) a default (or give rise to any right of 
termination, cancellation or acceleration) under, or result in the creation of a 
Lien on any property or asset of Parent or any of its Subsidiaries pursuant to, 
 
any of the terms, conditions or provisions of any material Contract to which 
Parent or Sub is a party or by which either of them or any of their properties 
or assets may be bound or (iv) violate any material law, order, writ, 
injunction, decree, statute, rule or regulation of any Governmental Entity 
applicable to Parent, Sub or any of their properties or assets. 
 
                  Section 5.5       Reports and Financial Statements.  Parent  
has timely filed all reports required to be filed with the SEC pursuant to the 
Exchange Act or the Securities Act since January 1, 1995 (collectively, the 
"Parent SEC Reports"), and has previously made available to the Company true and 
complete copies of all such Parent SEC Reports.  Such Parent SEC Reports, as of 
their respective dates, complied in all material respects with the applicable 
requirements of the Securities Act and the Exchange Act, as the case may be, and 
none of such SEC Reports contained any untrue statement of a material fact or 
omitted to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to 
make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were 
made, not misleading.  The consolidated financial statements of Parent included 
in the Parent SEC Reports have been prepared in accordance with GAAP 
consistently applied throughout the periods indicated (except as otherwise noted 
therein and fairly present the consolidated financial position of Parent and its 
consolidated Subsidiaries as at the dates thereof and the consolidated results 
of operations and cash flows of Parent and its consolidated Subsidiaries as of 
the respective dates, and for the respective periods, presented therein except 
that in the case of the unaudited consolidated financial statements included in 
any Form 10-Q, the presentation and disclosures conform with the applicable 
rules of the Exchange Act, but include all adjustments necessary to conform to 
GAAP requirements with respect to interim financial statements.  Except as set 
forth in the Parent SEC Reports or on Schedule 5.5, since January 1, 1996, there 
has been no change in any of the significant accounting (including tax 
accounting) policies, practices or procedures of the Parent or, any of its 
consolidated Subsidiaries. 
 
                  Section 5.6       Absence of Certain Changes or Events;  
Material Contracts.  Except as set forth in the Parent SEC Reports or on 
Schedule 5.6, since December 28, 1996, (i) Parent has not conducted its business 
and operations other than in the ordinary course of business and consistent with 
past practices or taken any of the actions set forth in Section 6.2(b) and (ii) 
there has not been 
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any fact, event, circumstance or change affecting or relating to Parent and its 
Subsidiaries which has had or is reasonably likely to have a Parent Material 
Adverse Effect. 
 
                  Section 5.7       Litigation.  Except for litigation  
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements included in Parent's Annual 
Report to Stockholders for the year ended December 28, 1996 or in the Parent SEC 
Reports filed subsequent thereto, there is no suit, action, proceeding or 
investigation pending or, to the Actual Knowledge of Parent, threatened against 
Parent or any of its Subsidiaries or any of their respective properties, the 
outcome of which is reasonably likely to have a Parent Material Adverse Effect; 
 
nor is there any judgment, decree, injunction, ruling or order of any 
Governmental Entity outstanding against Parent or any of its Subsidiaries 
having, or which is reasonably likely to have, a Parent Material Adverse Effect. 
The term "Actual Knowledge of Parent" shall mean the actual knowledge of any of 
Stanley M. Bergman, James P. Breslawski, Mark E. Mlotek, Steven Paladino and 
James W. Stahly. 
 
                  Section 5.8       Absence of Undisclosed Liabilities.  Except 
for liabilities or obligations which are accrued or reserved against in Parent's 
financial statements (or disclosed in the notes thereto) included in the Parent 
SEC Reports or which were incurred after June 30, 1997 in the ordinary course of 
business and consistent with past practice, none of Parent and its Subsidiaries 
has any liabilities or obligations (whether absolute, accrued, contingent or 
otherwise) of a nature required by GAAP to be reflected in a consolidated 
balance sheet (or disclosed in the notes thereto) or which may, to the Actual 
Knowledge of Parent, have a Parent Material Adverse Effect. 
 
                  Section 5.9       No Default.  Neither Parent nor any  
idiary of Parent is in default or violation (and no event has occurred which 
with notice or the lapse of time or both would constitute a default or 
violation) of any term, condition or provision of (i) its charter, by-laws or 
comparable organizational documents, (ii) any material Contracts to which Parent 
or any of its Subsidiaries is a party or by which they or any of their 
properties or assets may be bound, or (iii) any material order, writ, 
injunction, decree, statute, rule or regulation of any Governmental Entity 
applicable to Parent or any of its Subsidiaries. 
 
                  Section 5.10      Compliance with Applicable Law.  Except  
as disclosed in the Parent SEC Reports, (i) Parent and its Subsidiaries hold, 
and are in compliance with the terms of, all material permits, licenses, 
exemptions, orders and approvals of all Governmental Entities necessary for the 
current or proposed conduct of their respective businesses ("Parent Permits"), 
(ii) no fact exists or event has occurred, and no action or proceeding is 
pending or, to the Actual Knowledge of Parent threatened, that has a reasonable 
possibility of resulting in a revocation, non-renewal, termination, suspension 
or other material impairment of any material Parent Permits, (iii) the 
businesses of Parent and its Subsidiaries are not being conducted in material 
violation of any Applicable Law, and (iv) to the Actual Knowledge of Parent (x) 
no investigation or review by any Governmental Entity with respect to Parent or 
its Subsidiaries is pending or threatened and (y) no Governmental Entity has 
indicated an intention to conduct the same. 
 
                  Section 5.11      Information in Disclosure Documents and  
Registration Statement. None of the information to be supplied by or on behalf 
of Parent or Sub for inclusion in (i) the Registration Statement or (ii) the 
Proxy Statement will, in the case of the Registration Statement, at 
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the time it becomes effective, at the time of the filing of any post-effective 
amendment thereto, and at the Effective Time, and, in the case of the Proxy 
Statement or any amendments thereof or supplements thereto, at the time of the 
 
mailing of the Proxy Statement and any amendments or supplements thereto, and at 
the respective times of the meetings of stockholders of Parent to be held in 
connection with the Merger, contain any untrue statement of a material fact or 
omit to state any material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in 
order to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which 
they are made, not misleading.  The Registration Statement and the Proxy 
Statement will comply as to form in all material respects with the applicable 
provisions of the Securities Act and the Exchange Act, and the rules and 
regulations promulgated thereunder, except that no representation is made by 
Parent with respect to statements made therein based on information supplied by 
the Company or its representatives for inclusion in the Registration Statement 
or the Proxy Statement or with respect to information concerning the Company or 
any of its Subsidiaries incorporated by reference in the Registration Statement 
or the Proxy Statement. 
 
                  Section 5.12      Vote Required.  The affirmative vote of the 
holders of a majority of the shares of Parent Common Stock present in person or 
represented by proxy at the stockholders meeting of Parent described in Section 
7.4(b) (provided that the shares so present or represented constitute a majority 
of the outstanding shares of Parent Common Stock) is the only vote of the 
holders of any class or series of Parent capital stock necessary to approve the 
Merger and the issuance of shares of Parent Common Stock pursuant thereto.  The 
affirmative vote of Parent, as the sole stockholder of all outstanding shares of 
Sub Common Stock, is the only vote of the holders of any class or series of Sub 
capital stock necessary to approve the Merger.  The Board of Directors of Parent 
(at a meeting duly called and held) has by the unanimous vote of the directors 
present (i) approved this Agreement and the Irrevocable Proxy and Termination 
Rights Agreement, (ii) determined that the transactions contemplated hereby are 
fair to and in the best interests of the holders of Parent Common Stock, (iii) 
determined to recommend this Agreement, the Merger and the other transactions 
contemplated hereby to such holders for approval and adoption and (iv) caused 
Parent, as the sole stockholder of Sub, to approve and adopt this Agreement and 
the Irrevocable Proxy and Termination Rights Agreement.  The Board of Directors 
of Sub (by unanimous written consent) has approved this Agreement and the 
Irrevocable Proxy and Termination Rights Agreement. 
 
                  Section 5.13      Opinion of Financial Advisor.  The Board of 
Directors of Parent has received the opinion of Smith Barney Inc., dated August 
1, 1997, substantially to the effect that as of such date, the Exchange Ratio is 
fair to Parent from a financial point of view, the material terms of which 
opinion have been disclosed to the Company. 
 
                  Section 5.14      Accounting Matters.  None of Parent, any of 
its Subsidiaries or, to the Actual Knowledge of Parent, any of their respective 
directors, officers or stockholders, has taken any action which would prevent 
the accounting for the Merger as a pooling of interests in accordance with 
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 16, the interpretative releases pursuant 
thereto and the pronouncements of the SEC. 
 
                  Section 5.15      Brokers.  Except for Smith Barney Inc., no  
broker, finder or financial advisor is entitled to any brokerage, finder's or 
other fee or commission in connection with the Merger or the transactions 
contemplated by this Agreement based upon arrangements made by or 
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on behalf of Parent or Sub, and Parent has disclosed to the Company the material 
terms of the agreement pursuant to which Smith Barney Inc. is entitled to its 
fee. 
 
                  Section 5.16      Acceleration of Parent Stock Options.   
Since  December 31, 1995, except as set forth on Schedule 5.16, the Parent has 
not in any manner accelerated or provided for the acceleration of the vesting or 
exercisability of, or otherwise modified the terms and conditions applicable to, 
any outstanding option to purchase Parent Common Stock ("Parent Stock Options"), 
whether set forth in the governing stock option plans of the Parent, a stock 
option grant, award or other agreement or otherwise.  Except as set forth on 
Schedule 5.16, none of the awards, grants or other agreements pursuant to which 
Parent Stock Options were issued have provisions which accelerate the vesting or 
right to exercise such options upon the execution of this Agreement (including 
the documents attached as Exhibits hereto), the consummation of the transactions 
contemplated hereby (or thereby) or any other "change of control" events. 
 
                  Section 5.17      Parent Subsidiaries.  Schedule 5.17  
contains a complete and accurate list of all Subsidiaries of the Parent (other 
than inactive subsidiaries the assets of which are de minimis).  Each Subsidiary 
of Parent listed on Schedule 5.17 that is a corporation is duly organized, 
validly existing and in good standing under the laws of its jurisdiction of 
incorporation.  Each Subsidiary of Parent listed on Schedule 5.17 that is a 
partnership or limited liability company is duly formed and validly existing 
under the laws of its jurisdiction of formation.  Each Subsidiary of Parent 
listed on Schedule 5.17 has the corporate, partnership or limited liability 
company power, as the case may be, to carry on its business as it is now being 
conducted or presently proposed to be conducted.  Each Subsidiary of Parent is 
duly qualified as a foreign corporation, foreign partnership or a foreign 
limited liability company, as the case may be, authorized to do business, and is 
in good standing, in each jurisdiction where the character of its properties 
owned or held under lease or the nature of its activities makes such 
qualification necessary, except where the failure to be so qualified will not 
have a Parent Material Adverse Effect.  All of the outstanding shares of capital 
stock of the Subsidiaries of Parent listed on Schedule 5.17 that are 
corporations are validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable.  Except as set 
forth in the Parent SEC Reports, all of the outstanding shares of capital stock 
of, or other membership or ownership interests in, each Subsidiary of Parent are 
owned by the Parent or a Subsidiary of the Parent, in each case free and clear 
of any Liens. 
 
                  Section 5.18      Taxes. 
 
                  (a)      Parent has heretofore delivered or will make  
available to the Company  true, correct and complete copies of the consolidated 
federal, state, local and foreign income, franchise, sales and other Tax Returns 
filed by Parent and its Subsidiaries for each of Parent's 1995, 1994, 1993 and 
1992 fiscal years, inclusive.  Except as set forth on Schedule 5.18, Parent has 
duly filed, and each Subsidiary of Parent  has duly filed, all material federal, 
state, local and foreign income, franchise, sales and other Tax Returns required 
 
to be filed by Parent or any of its Subsidiaries.  All such Tax Returns are 
true, correct and complete, in all material respects, and Parent and its 
Subsidiaries have duly paid, all Taxes shown on such Tax Returns and has made 
adequate provision for payment of all accrued but unpaid material Taxes 
anticipated in respect of all periods since the periods covered by such Tax 
Returns.  Except as set forth on Schedule 5.18, all material deficiencies 
assessed as a result of any examination of Tax Returns of Parent or any of its 
Subsidiaries by federal, 
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state, local or foreign tax authorities have been paid or reserved on the 
financial statements of Parent in accordance with GAAP consistently applied, and 
true, correct and complete copies of all revenue agent's reports, "30-day 
letters," or "90-day letters" or similar written statements proposing or 
asserting any Tax deficiency against Parent or any of its Subsidiaries for any 
open year have been heretofore delivered to the Company.  Parent has heretofore 
delivered or will make available to the Company true, correct and complete 
copies of all written tax-sharing agreements and written descriptions of all 
such unwritten agreement or arrangements to which Parent or any of its 
Subsidiaries is a party.  Except as set forth in Schedule 5.18, no material 
issue has been raised during the past five years by any federal, state, local or 
foreign taxing authority which, if raised with regard to any other period not so 
examined, could reasonably be expected to result in a proposed material 
deficiency for any other period not so examined.  Except as disclosed in 
Schedule 5.18 hereof, neither Parent nor any of its Subsidiaries has granted any 
extension or waiver of the statutory period of limitations applicable to any 
claim for any material Taxes.  The consolidated federal income tax returns of 
Parent and its Subsidiaries have been examined by and settled with the Internal 
Revenue Service (the "Service") for all years through 1989.  Except as set forth 
in Schedule 5.18, (i) neither Parent nor any of Parent's Subsidiaries is a party 
to any agreement, contract or arrangement that would result, separately or in 
the aggregate, in the payment of any "excess parachute payments" within the 
meaning of Section 28OG of the Code; (ii) no consent has been filed under 
Section 341(f) of the Code with respect to any of Parent or the Subsidiaries of 
Parent; (iii) neither Parent nor any of the Subsidiaries of Parent has 
participated in, or cooperated with, an international boycott within the meaning 
of Section 999 of the Code; and (iv) neither Parent nor any of the Subsidiaries 
of Parent has issued or assumed any corporate acquisition indebtedness, as 
defined in Section 279(b) of the Code.  Parent and each Subsidiary of Parent 
have complied (and until the Effective Time will comply) in all material 
respects with all applicable laws, rules and regulations relating to the payment 
and withholding of Taxes (including, without limitation, withholding of Taxes 
pursuant to Sections 1441 and 1442 of the Code or similar provisions under any 
foreign laws) and have, within the time and in the manner prescribed by law, 
withheld from employee wages and paid over to the proper governmental 
authorities all amounts required to be so withheld and paid over under all 
applicable laws. 
 
                  Section 5.19      Title to Properties; Encumbrances.  Except  
as described in the following sentence, each of Parent and its Subsidiaries has 
good, valid and marketable title to, or a valid leasehold interest in, all of 
 
its material properties and assets (real, personal and mixed, tangible and 
intangible), including, without limitation, all the properties and assets 
reflected in the consolidated balance sheet of Parent and its Subsidiaries as of 
March 29, 1997 included in Parent's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period 
ended on such date (except for properties and assets disposed of in the ordinary 
course of business and consistent with past practices since March 29, 1997).  
None of such properties or assets are subject to any Liens (whether absolute, 
accrued, contingent or otherwise), except (i) as specifically set forth in the 
Parent SEC Reports and (ii) minor imperfections of title and encumbrances, if 
any, which are not substantial in amount, do not materially detract from the 
value of the property or assets subject thereto and do not impair the operations 
of any of Parent and its Subsidiaries. 
 
                  Section 5.20      Intellectual Property. 
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                  (a)      Except as set forth on Schedule 5.20(a), Parent and  
its Subsidiaries are the sole and exclusive owners of all material patents, 
patent applications, patent rights, trademarks, trademark rights, trade names, 
trade name rights, copyrights, service marks, trade secrets, registrations for 
and applications for registration of trademarks, service marks and copyrights, 
technology and know-how, rights in computer software and other proprietary 
rights and information and all technical and user manuals and documentation made 
or used in connection with any of the foregoing used or held for use in 
connection with the businesses of Parent or any of its Subsidiaries as currently 
conducted (collectively, the "Parent Intellectual Property"), free and clear of 
all Liens except as set forth on Schedule 5.20 and except minor imperfections of 
title and encumbrances, if any, which are not substantial in amount, do not 
materially detract from the value of the Parent Intellectual Property subject 
thereto and do not impair the operations of any of Parent and its Subsidiaries. 
 
                  (b)      All grants, registrations and applications for  
Parent  Intellectual Property that are used in and are material to the conduct 
of the business of Parent and its Subsidiaries (i) are valid, subsisting, in 
proper form and enforceable, and have been duly maintained, including the 
submission of all necessary filings and fees in accordance with the legal and 
administrative requirements of the appropriate jurisdictions and (ii) have not 
lapsed, expired or been abandoned, and no grant, registration or license 
therefor is the subject of any legal or governmental proceeding before any 
registration authority in any jurisdiction. 
 
                  (c)      Each of Parent and its Subsidiaries owns or has the  
right to use all of the material Parent Intellectual Property used by it or held 
for use by it in connection with its business. To the Actual Knowledge of 
Parent, there are no conflicts with or infringements of any Parent Intellectual 
Property by any third party.  The conduct of the business of Parent and its 
Subsidiaries does not conflict with or infringe in any way any proprietary right 
of any third party, which conflict or infringement would have a Parent Material 
Adverse Effect, and there is no claim, suit, action or proceeding pending or, to 
the Actual Knowledge of Parent, threatened against Parent or any of its 
Subsidiaries (i) alleging any such conflict or infringement with any third 
 
party's proprietary rights, or (ii) challenging the ownership, use, validity or 
enforceability of the Parent Intellectual Property. 
 
                  Section 5.21      Employee Benefit Plans; ERISA. 
 
                  (a)      Each "employee benefit plan," within the meaning of  
Section 3(3) of ERISA, and any other material employee benefit plan, arrangement 
or agreement, that is maintained, or was maintained at any time during the five 
(5) calendar years preceding the date of this Agreement (the "Parent Plans"), by 
the Parent or by any trade or business, whether or not incorporated (a "Parent 
ERISA Affiliate"), which together with the Parent would be deemed a "single 
employer" within the meaning of Section 4001 of ERISA or under Section 414(b), 
(c), (m) or (o) of the Code is and has been maintained and operated in 
compliance with its terms and applicable law, including without limitation, 
ERISA and the Code; each of the Parent Plans intended to be "qualified" within 
the meaning of Section 401(a) of the Code is so qualified and has been qualified 
since its inception. 
 
                  (b)      None of the Parent, any Parent ERISA Affiliate, or  
any of their respective predecessors has ever contributed to, contributes to, 
has ever been required to contribute to, or 
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otherwise participated in or participates in or in any way, directly or 
indirectly, has any liability with respect to any plan subject to Section 412 of 
the Code, Section 302 of ERISA or Title IV of ERISA, including, without 
limitation any, "multiemployer plan" (within the meaning of Sections (3)(37) or 
4001(a)(3) of ERISA or Section 414(f) of the Code), or any single employer 
pension plan and no Parent Plan is a multiple employer plan described in Section 
413 of the Code.  All contributions or other amounts payable by the Parent as of 
the Effective Time with respect to each Parent Plan in respect of current or 
prior plan years have been either paid or accrued on the balance sheet of the 
Parent.  There are no pending, threatened or, to the Actual Knowledge of the 
Parent, anticipated claims, lawsuits, arbitrations or other actions (other than 
non-material routine claims for benefits) by, on behalf of or against any of the 
Parent Plans, any trustee or fiduciaries thereof  or any trusts related  
thereto.  No Parent Plan currently is under audit or investigation by the 
Internal Revenue Service, U.S. Department of Labor, or any other governmental 
authority and no such completed audit, if any, has resulted in the imposition of 
any tax or penalty.  With respect to each Parent Plan that is funded mostly or 
partially through an insurance policy, neither the Parent nor any Parent ERISA 
Affiliate has any material liability in the nature of retroactive rate 
adjustment, loss sharing arrangement or other actual or contingent material 
liability arising wholly or partially out of events occurring on or before the 
Effective Time. 
 
                  (c)      Neither the Parent nor any Parent ERISA Affiliate,  
nor any Parent Plan, nor any trust created thereunder, nor any trustee or 
administrator thereof has engaged in a transaction in connection with which the 
Parent or any Parent ERISA Affiliate, any Parent Plan, any such trust, or any 
trustee or administrator thereof, or any party dealing with any Parent Plan or 
 
any such trust that is a "prohibited transaction," within the meaning of Section 
4975 of the Code and Section 406 of ERISA, other than a prohibited transaction 
that has been corrected and with respect to which all taxes and penalties have 
been paid prior to the date hereof.  No Parent Plan provides benefits (whether 
or not insured), with respect to current or former employees of the Parent or 
any Parent ERISA Affiliate beyond their retirement or other termination of 
service other than benefits under any "employee pension plan," as that term is 
defined in Section 3(2) of ERISA, qualified under Section 401(a) of the Code or 
under Section 4980B of the Code.  The consummation of the transactions 
contemplated by this Agreement will not give rise to any liability, including, 
without limitation, liability for severance pay, unemployment compensation, 
termination pay, or withdrawal liability, or accelerate the time of payment or 
vesting or increase the amount of compensation or benefits due to any employee, 
director, shareholder, or beneficiary of the Parent (whether current, former, or 
retired) or their beneficiaries solely by reason of such transactions. 
 
                  Section 5.22      Environmental Laws and Regulations.  Except 
as would not reasonably be likely to have a Parent Material Adverse Effect, or 
except as set forth on Schedule 5.22: 
 
                  (a)      (i) Parent and its Subsidiaries are and have been,  
in all material respects, in compliance with, and there are no outstanding 
written allegations or, to the Actual Knowledge of Parent, oral allegations, by 
any person or entity that Parent or its Subsidiaries has not been in compliance 
with, all Environmental Laws and (ii) Parent and its Subsidiaries currently hold 
all material permits, licenses, registrations and other governmental 
authorizations (including exemptions, waivers, and the like) and financial 
assurance required under Environmental Laws for Parent and its Subsidiaries to 
operate their businesses as currently conducted. 
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                  (b)      (i) there is no friable asbestos-containing material 
in or on any real property currently owned, leased or operated by Parent or its 
Subsidiaries and (ii) there are and, to the Actual Knowledge of Parent, have 
been no underground storage tanks (whether or not required to be registered 
under any applicable law), dumps, landfills, lagoons, surface impoundments, 
injection wells or other land disposal units in or on any property currently 
owned, leased or operated by Parent or its Subsidiaries. 
 
                  (c)      (i) neither Parent nor its Subsidiaries has received 
(x) any written communication from any person stating or alleging that any of 
them may be a potentially responsible party under any Environmental Law 
(including, without limitation, the Federal Comprehensive Environmental 
Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of 1980, as amended) with respect to 
any actual or alleged environmental contamination or (y) any request for 
information under any Environmental Law from any Governmental Entity with 
respect to any actual or alleged material environmental contamination; and (ii) 
neither of Parent, nor its Subsidiaries nor any Governmental Entity is 
conducting or has conducted (or, to the Actual Knowledge of the Parent, is 
threatening to conduct) any environmental remediation or investigation. 
 
 
                  (d)      To the Actual Knowledge of Parent, all real  
properties formerly owned, used, leased, occupied, managed or operated by Parent 
or its Subsidiaries complied, in all material respects, with the Environmental 
Laws during Parent's or its Subsidiaries' tenure thereat and, to the Actual 
Knowledge of Parent there are no environmental liabilities associated therewith 
that are reasonably likely to result in a Parent Material Adverse Effect. 
 
                  Section 5.23      Labor Matters.  Neither Parent nor any of  
its Subsidiaries is a party to, or bound by, any collective bargaining 
agreement, contract or other understanding with a labor union or labor 
organization and, to the Actual Knowledge of Parent, there is no activity 
involving any employees of Parent or its Subsidiaries seeking to certify a 
collective bargaining unit or engaging in any other organizational activity. 
 
                  Section 5.24      Affiliate Transactions.  Except as set  
forth in Schedule 5.24 or as disclosed in Parent SEC Reports, there are no, and 
since January 1, 1996 there have not been any, material Contracts or other 
transactions between the Parent or any of its Subsidiaries, on the one hand, and 
any (i) officer or director of the Parent or any of its Subsidiaries, (ii) 
record or beneficial owner of five percent or more of the voting securities of 
the Parent or (iii) affiliate (as such term is defined in Regulation 12b-2 
promulgated under the Exchange Act) of any such officer, director or beneficial 
owner, on the other hand. 
 
                  Section 5.25      Tax Matters.  Parent knows of no fact or  
circumstance which is reasonably likely to cause the Merger to be treated other 
than as a tax-free reorganization under Section 368(a) of the Code. 
 
                  Section 5.26      Accounts Receivable.  All of the accounts  
and notes receivable of the Parent and its Subsidiaries set forth on the books 
and records of the Parent net of the applicable reserves reflected on the books 
and records of the Parent and in the financial statements included in the Parent 
SEC Reports):  (i) represent sales actually made in the ordinary course of 
business for 
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goods or service delivered or rendered to unaffiliated customers in bona fide 
arm's length transactions, (ii) constitute valid claims, and (iii) are good and 
collectible, at the aggregate recorded amounts thereof (net of such reserves) 
without right of recourse, defense, deduction, return of goods, counterclaim, or 
offset and have been or will be collected in  the ordinary course of business 
and consistent with past experience. 
 
                  Section 5.27      Inventory.  All inventory of the Parent and  
its Subsidiaries is (net of the applicable reserves reflected on the books and 
records of the Parent and in the financial statements included in the Parent SEC 
Reports) of merchantable quality, free of defects in workmanship or design and 
is usable and salable at normal profit margins and in accordance with historical 
sales practices in the ordinary course of the business of the Parent and its 
Subsidiaries.  The inventory (net of such reserves) does not include any items 
which are obsolete, damaged, excessive, below standard quality or slow moving 
 
(i.e., items that are for discontinued or expected to be discontinued product 
lines, or items that have not been used or sold within 12 months prior to the 
date hereof). 
 
 
                                  ARTICLE VI 
 
                    CONDUCT OF BUSINESS PENDING THE MERGER 
 
                  Section 6.1       Conduct of Business by the Company Pending  
the Merger.  Prior to the Effective Time, unless Parent shall otherwise agree in 
writing, or as otherwise expressly contemplated by this Agreement: 
 
                  (a)      the Company shall conduct, and cause each of its  
Subsidiaries to conduct, its business only in the ordinary and usual course 
consistent with past practice, and the Company shall use, and cause each of its 
Subsidiaries to use, its reasonable efforts to preserve intact the present 
business organization, keep available the services of its present officers and 
key employees, and preserve the goodwill of those having business relationships 
with it; 
 
                  (b)      the Company shall not, nor shall it permit any of  
its Subsidiaries to, (i) amend its charter, bylaws or other organizational 
documents, (ii) split, combine or reclassify any shares of its outstanding 
capital stock, (iii) declare, set aside or pay any dividend or other 
distribution payable in cash, stock or property, or (iv) directly or indirectly 
redeem or otherwise acquire any shares of its capital stock or shares of the 
capital stock of any of its Subsidiaries; 
 
                  (c)      except as provided in Schedule 6.1(c), the Company  
shall not, nor shall it permit any of its Subsidiaries to, (i) authorize for 
issuance, issue or sell or agree to issue or sell any shares of, or Rights to 
acquire or which are convertible into any shares of, its capital stock or shares 
of the capital stock of any of its Subsidiaries (whether through the issuance or 
granting of options, warrants, commitments, subscriptions, rights to purchase or 
otherwise), except for the issuance of shares of Company Common Stock upon the 
exercise of Company Stock Options outstanding on the date of this Agreement and 
the issuance of options in connection with the hiring of sales representatives 
consistent with past practices; (ii) merge or consolidate with another entity; 
(iii) 
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acquire or purchase an equity interest in or a substantial portion of the assets 
of another corporation, partnership or other business organization or otherwise 
acquire any assets outside the ordinary and usual course of business and 
consistent with past practice or otherwise enter into any material contract, 
commitment or transaction outside the ordinary and usual course of business 
consistent with past practice; (iv) sell, lease, license, waive, release, 
transfer, encumber or otherwise dispose of any of its assets outside the 
ordinary and usual course of business and consistent with past practice; (v) 
incur, assume or prepay any material indebtedness or any other material 
 
liabilities other than in the ordinary course of business and consistent with 
past practice; (vi) assume, guarantee, endorse or otherwise become liable or 
responsible (whether directly, contingently or otherwise) for the obligations of 
any other person other than a Subsidiary of the Company, in each case in the 
ordinary course of business and consistent with past practice; (vii) make any 
loans, advances or capital contributions to, or investments in, any other 
person, other than to Subsidiaries of the Company; (viii) authorize or make 
capital expenditures in excess of the amounts currently budgeted therefor; (ix) 
permit any insurance policy naming the Company or any Subsidiary of the Company 
as a beneficiary or a loss payee to be cancelled or terminated other than in the 
ordinary course of business; or (x) enter into any contract, agreement, 
commitment or arrangement with respect to any of the foregoing; 
 
                  (d)      the Company shall not, nor shall it permit its  
Subsidiaries  to, (i) adopt, enter into, terminate or amend (except as may be 
required by Applicable Law) any Company Plan or other arrangement for the 
current or future benefit or welfare of any director, officer or current or 
former employee, (ii) increase in any manner the compensation or fringe benefits 
of, or pay any bonus to, any director, officer or employee (except for normal 
increases in salaried compensation in the ordinary course of business consistent 
with past practice, or (iii) take any action to fund or in any other way secure, 
or to accelerate or otherwise remove restrictions with respect to, the payment 
of compensation or benefits under any employee plan, agreement, contract, 
arrangement or other Company Plan (including the Company Stock Options); 
 
                  (e)      the Company shall not, nor shall it permit its  
Subsidiaries to, take any action with respect to, or make any material change 
in, its accounting or tax policies or procedures, except as required by law or 
to comply with GAAP; 
 
                  (f)      the Company shall not (i) take or allow to be taken  
any action which would jeopardize the treatment of Parent's acquisition of the 
Company as a pooling of interests for accounting purposes; or (ii) take any 
action which would jeopardize qualification of the Merger as a reorganization 
within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code. 
 
                  Section 6.2       Conduct of Business by Parent Pending the  
Merger.  Prior to the Effective Time, unless the Company shall otherwise agree 
in writing, and except as otherwise expressly contemplated by this Agreement: 
 
                  (a)      Parent shall conduct its business and the business  
of its Subsidiaries in a manner designed, in the good faith judgment of its 
Board of Directors, to enhance the long-term value of the Parent Common Stock 
and the business prospects of Parent and Subsidiaries; 
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                  (b)      Parent shall not (i) split, combine or reclassify  
any shares of its outstanding capital stock; or (ii) declare, set aside or pay 
any dividend or other distribution payable in cash, stock or property; 
 
 
                  (c)      Parent shall not authorize for issuance, issue or  
sell or agree to issue or sell any shares of, or Rights to acquire or which are 
convertible into any shares of, its capital stock, except for (i) the issuance 
of shares of Parent Common Stock (x) upon the exercise of stock options or other 
Rights outstanding on the date of this Agreement, or  (y) upon the exercise of 
Rights described in the immediately following clause (ii) or (z) upon the 
conversion of the Parent Preferred Stock in accordance with its present terms, 
(ii) the issuance of Rights or shares of Parent Common Stock pursuant to 
existing employee benefit plans or arrangements in a manner consistent with past 
practice, and (iii) the issuance of shares of Parent Common Stock or Rights in 
connection with arm's length transactions with non-affiliates; 
 
                  (d)      neither Parent nor Sub shall (i) take or allow to be 
taken any action which would jeopardize the treatment of Parent's acquisition of 
the Company as a pooling of interests for accounting purposes; or (ii) take any 
action which would jeopardize qualification of the Merger as a reorganization 
within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Code. 
 
                  Section 6.3       Conduct of Business of Sub.  During the  
period from the date of this Agreement to the Effective Time, Sub shall not 
engage in any activities of any nature except as provided in or contemplated by 
this Agreement.  It is understood that Sub was formed by Parent solely for the 
purpose of effecting the Merger, and that Sub will have no material assets and 
no material liabilities prior to the Merger. 
 
 
                                 ARTICLE VII 
 
                            ADDITIONAL AGREEMENTS 
 
                  Section 7.1       Access and Information.  Each of the  
Company and Parent shall (and shall cause its Subsidiaries and its and those of 
their respective officers, directors and employees whose names appear on 
Schedule 7.1, auditors and agents to) afford to the other and to the other's 
officers, employees, financial advisors, legal counsel, accountants, consultants 
and other representatives reasonable access during normal business hours 
throughout the period prior to the Effective Time to all of its books and 
records and its properties, plants and personnel and, during such period, each 
shall furnish promptly to the other a copy of each report, schedule and other 
document filed or received by it pursuant to the requirements of federal 
securities laws, provided that no investigation pursuant to this Section 7.1 
shall affect any representations or warranties made herein or the conditions to 
the obligations of the respective parties to consummate the Merger. Unless 
otherwise required by law, each party agrees that it (and its Subsidiaries and 
its and their respective representatives) shall hold in confidence all 
non-public information so acquired in accordance with the terms of the 
confidentiality agreement, dated July 1, 1997, between Parent and the Company 
(the "Confidentiality Agreement"). 
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                  Section 7.2       No Solicitation. 
 
                  (a)      Prior to the Effective Time, the Company agrees  
that neither it, any of its Subsidiaries or its affiliates, nor any of the 
respective directors, officers, employees, agents or representatives of the 
foregoing will, directly or indirectly, solicit, initiate, facilitate or 
encourage (including by way of furnishing or disclosing non-public information) 
any inquiries or the making of any proposal with respect to any merger, 
consolidation or other business combination involving the Company or any 
material Subsidiary of the Company or the acquisition of  any securities of  the 
Company or all or any material assets (including stock of a subsidiary) of the 
Company and the Subsidiaries of the Company taken as a whole (an "Acquisition 
Transaction") or negotiate, explore or otherwise engage in discussions with any 
person (other than Parent and its representatives) with respect to any 
Acquisition Transaction or enter into any agreement, arrangement or 
understanding with respect to any such Acquisition Transaction or which would 
require it to abandon, terminate or fail to consummate the Merger or any other 
transaction contemplated by this Agreement; provided, however, that the Company 
may, in response to an unsolicited written proposal from a third party with 
respect to an Acquisition Transaction, furnish information to and engage in 
discussions with such third party, in each case only if the Board of Directors 
of the Company determines in good faith by a majority vote, after consultation 
with its financial advisors and based upon the advice of  outside counsel to the 
Company, that failing to take such action would result in a breach of the 
fiduciary duties of the Board of Directors and, prior to taking such action, the 
Company (i) provides reasonable notice to Parent to the effect that it is taking 
such action and (ii) receives from such corporation, partnership, person or 
other entity or group (and delivers to Parent) an executed confidentiality 
agreement in reasonably customary form.  The Company agrees that as of the date 
hereof, it, its Subsidiaries and affiliates, and the respective directors, 
officers, employees, agents and representatives of the foregoing, shall 
immediately cease and cause to be terminated any existing activities, 
discussions or negotiations with any person (other than Parent and its 
representatives) conducted heretofore with respect to any Acquisition 
Transaction.  The Company agrees to immediately advise Parent in writing of any 
inquiries or proposals (or desire to make a proposal) received by any such 
information requested from, or any such negotiations or discussions sought to be 
initiated or continued with, any of it, its Subsidiaries or affiliates, or any 
of the respective directors, officers, employees, agents or representatives of 
the foregoing, in each case from a person (other than Parent and its 
representatives) with respect to an Acquisition Transaction, and the terms 
thereof, including the identity of such third party, and to update on an ongoing 
basis or upon Parent's request, the status thereof, as well as any actions taken 
or other developments pursuant to this Section 7.2(a).  Notwithstanding anything 
in the foregoing provisions of this Section 7.2(a) to the contrary: (i) the 
Company shall not disclose any information received by it or any of its 
directors, officers, employees, agents or representatives pursuant to the 
Confidentiality Agreement or  any other confidentiality or other similar 
agreement between the Company and Parent to any person in violation of such 
agreement and (ii) the Company shall not be obligated to disclose to Parent any 
confidential information provided to the Company by any third party in violation 
of any law or any confidentiality agreement between the Company and such third 
party provided for in this Section 7.2. 
 
 
                  (b)      Except as set forth in this Section 7.2(b), the  
Board of Directors of the Company shall not (i) withdraw or modify, or propose 
to withdraw or modify, in a manner adverse 
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to the Parent or the Sub, the approval or recommendation by the Board of 
Directors of this Agreement or the Merger, (ii) approve or recommend, or propose 
to approve or recommend, any Acquisition Transaction or (iii) cause the Company 
to enter into any agreement with respect to any Acquisition Transaction.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event that prior to the Effective Time the 
Board of Directors of the Company determines in its good faith reasonable 
judgment, by a majority vote, after consultation with its financial advisors, 
that the Acquisition Transaction is more favorable to the stockholders of the 
Company than the Merger and, based upon the advice of outside counsel to the 
Company, that such action is required by the fiduciary duties of the Board of 
Directors, the Board of Directors of the Company may withdraw or modify its 
approval or recommendation of this Agreement and the Merger, approve or 
recommend such Acquisition Transaction or (subject to Section 9.2(b)) cause the 
Company to enter into an agreement with respect to such Acquisition Transaction, 
but only if the Company gives Parent at least five business days prior written 
notice thereof, during which time Parent may make, and, in such event, the 
Company shall in good faith consider, a counter proposal to such Acquisition 
Transaction. 
 
                  Section 7.3       Registration Statement.  As promptly as  
practicable, Parent and the Company shall in consultation with each other 
prepare and file with the SEC the Proxy Statement and Parent in consultation 
with the Company shall prepare and file with the SEC the Registration  
Statement.  Each of Parent and the Company shall use its reasonable best efforts 
to have the Registration Statement declared effective as soon as practicable.  
Parent shall also use its reasonable best efforts to take any action required to 
be taken under state securities or "blue sky" laws in connection with the 
issuance of the shares of Parent Common Stock pursuant to this Agreement in the 
Merger.  The Company shall furnish Parent with all information concerning the 
Company and the holders of its capital stock and shall take such other action as 
Parent may reasonably request in connection with the Registration Statement and 
the issuance of shares of Parent Common Stock. If at any time prior to the 
Effective Time any event or circumstance relating to Parent, any Subsidiary of 
Parent, the Company, any Subsidiary of the Company, or their respective officers 
or directors, should be discovered by such party which should be set forth in an 
amendment or a supplement to the Registration Statement or Proxy Statement, such 
party shall promptly inform the other thereof and take appropriate action in 
respect thereof.  Neither Parent nor Company shall distribute any written 
material that would constitute a "prospectus" relating to the Merger other than 
in compliance with the Securities Act or any applicable state's securities laws. 
 
                  Section 7.4       Proxy Statements; Stockholder Approvals. 
 
                  (a)      The Company, acting through its Board of Directors,  
l, subject to and in accordance with applicable law and its Certificate of 
Incorporation and By-Laws, promptly and duly call, give notice of, convene and 
 
hold as soon as practicable following the date upon which the Registration 
Statement becomes effective a meeting of the holders of Company Common Stock for 
the purpose of voting to approve and adopt this Agreement and the transactions 
contemplated hereby, and, subject to the fiduciary duties of the Board of 
Directors of the Company under applicable law as advised by outside legal 
counsel, (i) recommend approval and adoption of this Agreement and the 
transactions contemplated hereby by the stockholders of the Company and include 
in the Proxy Statement such recommendation and (ii) take all reasonable and 
lawful action to solicit and obtain such approval. 
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                  (b)      Parent, acting through its Board of Directors,  
shall, subject to and in accordance with applicable law and its Certificate of 
Incorporation and By-Laws, promptly and duly call, give notice of, convene and 
hold as soon as practicable following the date upon which the Registration 
Statement becomes effective a meeting of the holders of Parent Common Stock for 
the purpose of voting to approve and adopt this Agreement and the transactions 
contemplated hereby, and, subject to the fiduciary duties of the Board of 
Directors of Parent under applicable law as advised by outside counsel, (i) 
recommend approval and adoption of this Agreement and the transactions 
contemplated hereby by the stockholders of Parent and include in the Proxy 
Statement such recommendation, and (ii) take all reasonable and lawful action to 
solicit and obtain such approval. 
 
                  (c)      Parent and the Company, as promptly as practicable  
(or with such other timing as they mutually agree), shall cause the definitive 
Proxy Statement to be mailed to their stockholders. 
 
                  (d)      At or prior to the Closing, each of Parent and the  
Company shall deliver to the other a certificate of its Secretary setting forth 
the voting results from its stockholder meeting. 
 
                  Section 7.5       Compliance with the Securities Act. 
 
                  (a)      At least 45 days prior to the Effective Time, each  
of Parent and the Company shall cause to be delivered to the other a list 
identifying all persons who were, in its reasonable judgment, at the record date 
for its stockholders' meeting convened in accordance with Section 7.4 hereof, 
"affiliates" of such party as that term is used in paragraphs (c) and (d) of 
Rule 145 under the Securities Act (the "Affiliates"). 
 
                  (b)      Each of Parent and the Company shall use its  
reasonable best efforts to cause each person who is identified as one of its 
Affiliates in its list referred to in, Section 7.5(a) above to deliver to Parent 
(with a copy to the Company), at least 30 days prior to the Effective Time, a 
written agreement, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit B-1, in the case of 
Affiliates of Parent, and in the form attached hereto as Exhibit B-2, in the 
case of Affiliates of the Company (the "Affiliate Agreement"). 
 
                  (c)      If any Affiliate of the Company refuses to provide  
an Affiliate Agreement, Parent may place appropriate legends on the certificates 
 
evidencing the shares of Parent Common Stock to be received by such Affiliate 
pursuant to the terms of this Agreement and to issue appropriate stop transfer 
instructions to the transfer agent for shares of Parent Common Stock to the 
effect that the shares of Parent Common Stock received by such Affiliate 
pursuant to this Agreement may be sold, transferred or otherwise conveyed only 
(i) pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act, 
(ii) in compliance with Rule 145 promulgated under the Securities Act, or (iii) 
pursuant to another exemption under the Securities Act. 
 
                  Section 7.6       Reasonable Best Efforts.  Subject to the  
terms and conditions herein provided, each of the parties hereto agrees to use 
its reasonable best efforts to take, or cause to be taken, all action and to do, 
or cause to be done, all things necessary, proper or advisable under applicable 
laws and regulations to consummate and make effective the transactions 
contemplated 
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by this Agreement, including, without limitation, the obtaining of all necessary 
waivers, consents and approvals and the effecting of all necessary registrations 
and filings.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, as promptly as 
practicable, the Company, Parent and Sub shall make all filings and submissions 
under the HSR Act as may be reasonably required to be made in connection with 
this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby and the Company shall 
use its reasonable best efforts to cause any affiliate of the Company who is 
required to make a filing or submission under the HSR Act in connection with 
this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby to do so promptly.  
Subject to the Confidentiality Agreement, the Company will furnish to Parent and 
Sub, and Parent and Sub will furnish to the Company, such information and 
assistance as the other may reasonably request in connection with the 
preparation of any such filings or submissions.  Subject to the Confidentiality 
Agreement, the Company will provide Parent and Sub, and Parent and Sub will 
provide the Company, with copies of all material written correspondence, filings 
and communications (or memoranda setting forth the substance thereof) between 
such party or any of its representatives and any Governmental Entity, with 
respect to the obtaining of any waivers, consent or approvals and the making of 
any registrations or filings, in each case that is necessary to consummate the 
Merger and the other transactions contemplated hereby.  In case at any time 
after the Effective Time any further action is necessary or desirable to carry 
out the purposes of this Agreement, the proper officers or directors of Parent 
and the Surviving Corporation shall take all such necessary action. 
 
                  Section 7.7       Irrevocable Proxy and Termination Rights  
Agreement.  Concurrently herewith, and as an essential inducement for Parent's 
entering into this Agreement, Parent and Sub are entering into the Irrevocable 
Proxy and Termination Rights Agreement with certain holders of the Company 
Common Stock with respect to all such shares of Company Common Stock held by 
such holders. 
 
                  Section 7.8       Company Stock Options.  To the extent  
permitted by the respective terms of the Company Stock Options and the plans 
under which they were issued, at the Effective Time, each of the Company Stock 
 
Options (and, solely with respect to such options, the applicable option plans 
pursuant to which such options were issued) which is outstanding immediately 
prior to the Effective Time shall be assumed by Parent and converted 
automatically into an option to purchase shares of Parent Common Stock (a "New 
Option") in an amount and at an exercise price determined as provided below: 
 
                  (a)      The number of shares of Parent Common Stock to be  
subject to the New Option shall be equal to the product of the number of shares 
of Company Common Stock remaining subject (as of immediately prior to the 
Effective Time) to the original option and the Exchange Ratio, provided that any 
fractional shares of Parent Common Stock resulting from such multiplication 
shall be rounded down to the nearest share; and 
 
                  (b)      The exercise price per share of Parent Common Stock 
under the New Option shall be equal to the exercise price per share of Company 
Common Stock under the original option divided by the Exchange Ratio, provided 
that such exercise price shall be rounded down to the nearest cent. 
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The adjustment provided herein with respect to any options which are "incentive 
stock options" (as defined in Section 422 of the Code) shall be modified to the 
extent required to comply with Section 424(a) of the Code and the applicable 
Treasury regulations.  After the Effective Time, each New Option shall be 
exercisable and shall vest upon the same terms and conditions as were applicable 
to the related Company Stock Option immediately prior to the Effective Time, 
except that all references to the Company shall be deemed to be references to 
Parent.  Parent shall file with the SEC a registration statement on Form S-8 (or 
other appropriate form) or a post-effective amendment to the Registration 
Statement and shall take any action required to be taken under state securities 
"blue sky" laws for purposes of registering all shares of Parent Common Stock 
issuable after the Effective Time upon exercise of the New Options, and shall 
use all reasonable efforts to have such registration statement or post-effective 
amendment (or a successor or replacement registration statement) become 
effective with respect thereto as promptly as practicable after the Effective 
Time. 
 
                  Section 7.9       Public Announcements.  Each of Parent, Sub,  
and the Company agrees that it will not issue any press release or otherwise 
make any public statement with respect to this Agreement (including the Exhibits 
hereto) or the transactions contemplated hereby (or thereby) without the prior 
consent of the other party, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or 
delayed; provided, however, that such disclosure can be made without obtaining 
such prior consent if (i) the disclosure is required by law or by obligations 
imposed pursuant to any listing agreement with any national securities exchange 
and (ii)the party making such disclosure has first used its reasonable best 
efforts to consult with (but not obtain the consent of) the other party about 
the form and substance of such disclosure. 
 
                  Section 7.10      Expenses.  Except as otherwise set forth  
in Section 9.2(b), whether or not the Merger is consummated, all costs and 
 
expenses incurred in connection with this Agreement (including the Exhibits 
hereto) and the transactions contemplated hereby (and thereby) shall be paid by 
the party incurring such expenses, except that (i) the expenses incurred in 
connection with printing the Registration Statement and the Proxy Statement and 
(ii) the filing fee with the SEC relating to the Registration Statement or the 
Proxy Statement will be shared equally by Parent and the Company and the filing 
fee in connection with filings under the HSR Act by Parent or the Company (but 
not any Affiliate of the Company) shall be the expense solely of Parent . 
 
                  Section 7.11      Listing Application.  Parent will use its  
reasonable best efforts to cause the shares of Parent Common Stock to be issued 
pursuant to this Agreement in the Merger (as well as the shares of Parent Common 
Stock issuable after the Effective Time upon exercise of the New Options) to be 
listed for quotation and trading on the NASDAQ National Market. 
 
                  Section 7.12      Supplemental Disclosure.  The Company shall 
give prompt notice to Parent, and Parent shall give prompt notice to the 
Company, of (i) the occurrence, or non-occurrence, of any event the occurrence, 
or non-occurrence, of which would be likely to cause (x) any representation or 
warranty contained in this Agreement to be untrue or inaccurate or (y) any 
covenant, condition or agreement contained in this Agreement not to be complied 
with or satisfied and (ii) any failure of the Company or Parent, as the case may 
be, to comply with or satisfy any covenant, condition or agreement to be 
complied with or satisfied by it hereunder; provided, however, that the delivery 
of any notice pursuant to this Section 7.12 shall not have any effect for 
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the purpose of determining the satisfaction of the conditions set forth in 
Article VIII of this Agreement or otherwise limit or affect the remedies 
available hereunder to any party. 
 
                  Section 7.13      Letters of Accountants. 
 
                  (a)      Parent shall use all reasonable efforts to cause to  
be delivered to the Company (i) a letter of BDO Seidman LLP, Parent's 
independent auditors, dated a date within two business days before the date on 
which the Registration Statement shall become effective and addressed to the 
Company, in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Company and 
customary in scope and substance for letters delivered by independent public 
accountants in connection with registration statements similar to the 
Registration Statement, which letter shall be brought down to the Effective 
Time, and (ii) the letter referred to in 8.2(d). 
 
                  (b)      The Company shall use all reasonable best efforts  
to cause to be delivered to Parent a letter of Deloitte & Touche LLP, the 
Company's independent auditors, dated a date within two business days before the 
date on which the Registration Statement shall become effective and addressed to 
Parent, in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to Parent and customary in 
scope and substance for letters delivered by independent public accountants in 
connection with registration statements similar to the Registration Statement, 
which letter shall be brought down to the Effective Time. 
 
 
                  Section 7.14      Directors of Parent.  Parent agrees that,  
promptly after the Effective Time, Parent shall take such action as may be 
necessary to cause either Robert J. Sullivan or Timothy J. Sullivan (or if both 
Robert J. Sullivan and Timothy J. Sullivan are unwilling or unable to serve, 
then Timothy J. Sullivan's designee, which designee shall be reasonably 
acceptable to Parent), to be nominated for election to Parent's Board of 
Directors, and to use its reasonable best efforts to cause such individual to be 
elected to Parent's Board of Directors. 
 
                  Section 7.15      Indemnification. 
 
                  (a)      Parent agrees that all rights to indemnification  
existing as of the date of this Agreement in favor of the employees, agents, 
directors or officers ("Indemnified Persons") of the Company, as provided in the 
Companys articles of incorporation, as amended, and bylaws, as amended 
("Organic Documents") of the Company or in any written agreement between the 
Company and an Indemnified Person ("Indemnification Agreements") listed on 
Schedule 7.15 (true and complete copies of which have been delivered to Parent), 
shall survive the Effective Date and shall continue in full force and effect as 
obligations of the Parent for a period not less than six years from the 
Effective Date.  Parent shall cause Surviving Corporation on the Effective Date 
not to cause or permit the amendment of such provisions of the Organic Documents 
for a period of not less than six years from the Effective Date. 
 
                  (b)      Parent shall use its reasonable best efforts to  
maintain in effect (for at least six years from the Effective Time in the case 
of claims made policies) directors' and officers' liability insurance policies 
providing coverage in an aggregate amount of at least $4,000,000 and with a 
carrier(s) having a Best's rating of at least "A" covering directors and 
officers of the Company 
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serving as of or after December 1, 1990 with respect to claims arising from 
occurrences prior to or at the Effective Time (including the transactions 
contemplated by or related to this Agreement). 
 
                  Section 7.16      Solicitation of Employees and  
Representatives.  Each of  Parent and the Company agrees that, subject to the 
last sentence of this Section 7.16, (i) for a period beginning on the 
Termination Date, if any, and ending on the 6 month anniversary of such date, it 
will not hire any individual who at any time during the three month period 
preceding the date of this Agreement was, or who at any time on or after the 
date of this Agreement is, an employee or independent sales representative of 
the other party and (ii) for a period beginning on the Termination Date, if any, 
and ending on the 12-month anniversary of such date, it will not directly or 
indirectly solicit any such individual of the other party.  Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, each party may place advertisements in publications of general 
circulation to recruit personnel, provided such publications containing such 
advertisements are distributed solely through the customary and public 
distribution channels of the publication.  The covenants provided for in this 
 
Section 7.16 shall not apply to any party from and after the time that such 
party becomes entitled to receive a fee pursuant to Section 9.2(b), (c) or (d). 
 
 
                                 ARTICLE VIII 
 
                   CONDITIONS TO CONSUMMATION OF THE MERGER 
 
                  Section 8.1       Conditions to Each Party's Obligation to  
Effect the Merger.  The respective obligations of each party to effect the 
Merger shall be subject to the satisfaction at or prior to the Effective Time of 
the following conditions: 
 
                  (a)      HSR Approval.  Any waiting period applicable to the  
consummation of the Merger under the HSR Act shall have expired or been 
terminated, and no action shall have been instituted by the U.S. Department of 
Justice or Federal Trade Commission challenging or seeking to enjoin the 
consummation of this transaction, which action shall have not been withdrawn or 
terminated. 
 
                  (b)      Stockholder Approval.  This Agreement and the  
transactions contemplated hereby shall have been approved and adopted by (i) the 
requisite vote (as described in Section 4.18) of the stockholders of the Company 
and (ii) by the requisite vote (as described in Section 5.12) of the 
stockholders of Parent, in each case, in accordance with applicable law. 
 
                  (c)      NASDAQ Listing.  The shares of Parent Common Stock  
issuable to the holders of Company Common Stock pursuant to this Agreement in 
the Merger shall have been authorized for listing on the NASDAQ National Market, 
upon official notice of issuance. 
 
                  (d)      Registration Statement.  The Registration Statement 
shall have become effective under the Securities Act and shall not be the 
subject of any stop order or proceeding by the SEC seeking a stop order. 
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                  (e)      No Order.  No Governmental Entity (including a  
federal or state court) of competent jurisdiction shall have enacted, issued, 
promulgated, enforced or entered any statute, rule, regulation, executive order, 
decree, injunction or other order (whether temporary, preliminary or permanent) 
which is in effect and which materially restricts, prevents or prohibits 
consummation of the Merger or any transaction contemplated by this Agreement; 
provided, however, that the parties shall use their reasonable best efforts to 
cause any such decree, judgment, injunction or other order to be vacated or 
lifted. 
 
                  (f)      Approvals.  Other than the filing of Merger  
documents in accordance with the WBCL, all authorizations, consents, waivers, 
orders or approvals of, or declarations or filings with, or expirations of 
waiting periods imposed by, any Governmental Entity the failure of which to 
obtain, make or occur would individually or in the aggregate have a material 
 
adverse effect at or after the Effective Time on (i) Parent and its Subsidiaries 
or (ii) the Surviving Corporation and its Subsidiaries shall have been obtained, 
been filed or have occurred.  Parent shall have received all state securities or 
"blue sky" permits and other authorizations necessary to issue the shares of 
Parent Common Stock pursuant to this Agreement in the Merger. 
 
                  (g)      Litigation.  No preliminary or permanent injunction  
or other order shall have been issued by any court or by any governmental or 
regulatory agency, body or authority which enjoins, restrains or prohibits the 
transactions contemplated hereby, including the consummation of the Merger or 
has the effect of making the Merger illegal and which is in effect at the 
Effective Time (each party agreeing to use its best efforts to have any such 
injunction or order lifted). 
 
                  (h)      Statutes.  No statute, rule, regulation, executive  
order, decree or order of any kind shall have been enacted, entered, promulgated 
or enforced by any court or governmental authority which prohibits the 
consummation of the Merger or has the effect of making the Merger illegal. 
 
                  (i)      Market Events.  There shall not have occurred and be 
continuing any general suspension or limitation of trading in Parent Common 
Stock (exclusive, however, of any temporary suspension pending an ensuing public 
announcement) or in securities generally on the NASDAQ National Market. 
 
                  Section 8.2       Conditions to Obligations of Parent and Sub 
to Effect the Merger.  The obligations of Parent and Sub to effect the Merger 
shall be subject to the satisfaction at or prior to the Effective Time of the 
following additional conditions, unless waived in writing by Parent: 
 
                  (a)      Representations and Warranties.  The representations 
and warranties of the Company set forth in this Agreement shall be true and 
correct in all material respects as of the date hereof and, except to the extent 
such representations and warranties speak as of an earlier date, as of the 
Effective Time as though made at and as of the Effective Time, except, in each 
case, to the extent that the aggregate effect of all such breaches or 
misrepresentations does not and would not reasonably be expected to have a 
Company Material Adverse Effect, and Parent shall have received a certificate 
signed on behalf of the Company by the chief executive officer or the chief 
financial officer of the Company to such effect. 
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                  (b)      Performance of Obligations of the Company.  Each of  
the Company and its Subsidiaries shall have performed in all material respects 
all obligations required to be performed by it under this Agreement at or prior 
to the Effective Time, and Parent shall have received a certificate signed on 
behalf of the Company by the chief executive officer or the chief financial 
officer of the Company to such effect. 
 
                  (c)      Affiliate Agreements.  Parent shall have received  
the Affiliate Agreements from each of the Affiliates of the Company, as 
contemplated in Section 7.5. 
 
 
                  (d)      "Pooling Letter".  Parent shall have received from  
BDO Seidman LLP a letter, dated the Closing Date and addressed to Parent, to the 
effect that, subject to customary qualifications, the Merger qualifies for 
pooling of interests treatment for financial reporting purposes in accordance 
with GAAP, and Parent shall have received from the Company, with the consent of 
Deloitte & Touche LLP, a copy of a letter, dated the Closing Date, of Deloitte & 
Touche LLP addressed to the Company to the effect that, subject to customary 
qualifications, the Merger qualifies for pooling of interests for financial 
reporting purposes in accordance with GAAP. 
 
                  (e)      Tax Opinion of Counsel.  Parent shall have received  
an opinion of Proskauer Rose LLP, tax counsel to Parent, in form and substance 
reasonably satisfactory to Parent, dated as of the Effective Time, substantially 
to the effect that no gain or loss will be recognized by the Company, Parent or 
Sub as a result of the Merger. 
 
                  (f)      Letters of Resignation.  Parent and Sub shall have  
received letters of resignation addressed to the Company from the members of the 
Company's board of directors, which resignations shall be effective as of the 
Effective Time. 
 
                  (g)      Legal Opinion.  Parent shall have received an  
opinion, dated the Closing Date, of Wolfe, Wolfe & Ryd, counsel to the Company, 
substantially to the effect set forth in Exhibit C hereto, subject to 
assumptions, qualifications and limitations reasonably satisfactory to Parent.  
In such opinion Wolfe, Wolfe & Ryd may rely on an opinion of local counsel as to 
matters of Wisconsin law, provided that such local counsel and its opinion are 
reasonably satisfactory to Parent and a copy of such counsel's opinion is 
attached to Wolfe, Wolfe & Ryd's opinion. 
 
                  Section 8.3       Conditions to Obligation of the Company to  
Effect the Merger.  The obligation of the Company to effect the Merger shall be 
subject to the satisfaction at or prior to the Effective Time of the following 
additional conditions: 
 
                  (a)      Representations and Warranties.  The representations 
and warranties of Parent set forth in this Agreement shall be true and correct 
in all material respects as of the date hereof and, except to the extent such 
representations and warranties speak as of an earlier date, as of the Effective 
Time as though made on and as of the Effective Time, except, in each case, to 
the extent that the aggregate effect of all such breaches or misrepresentations 
does not and would not reasonably be expected to have a Parent Material Adverse 
Effect, and the Company shall have received a certificate signed on behalf of 
Parent by the chief executive officer or the chief financial officer of Parent 
to such effect. 
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                  (b)      Performance of Obligations of Parent and Sub.  Each  
of Parent and Sub shall have performed in all material respects all obligations 
required to be performed by it under this Agreement at or prior to the Effective 
 
Time, and the Company shall have received a certificate signed on behalf of 
Parent by the chief executive officer or the chief financial officer of Parent 
to such effect. 
 
                  (c)      Legal Opinion.  The Company shall have received the  
opinion, dated as of the Effective Time, of Proskauer Rose LLP, counsel to 
Parent, substantially to the effect set forth in Exhibit D hereto, subject to 
assumptions, qualifications and limitations reasonably satisfactory to the 
Company.  In such opinion Proskauer Rose LLP may rely on an opinion of local 
counsel as to matters of Wisconsin law, provided that such local counsel and its 
opinion are reasonably satisfactory to the Company and a copy of such counsel's 
opinion is attached to Proskauer Rose LLP's opinion. 
 
 
                                  ARTICLE IX 
 
                                 TERMINATION 
 
                  Section 9.1       Termination.  This Agreement may be  
terminated at any time prior to the Effective Time, whether before or after 
approval by the stockholders of Parent or the Company: 
 
                  (a)      by mutual consent of Parent and the Company; 
 
                  (b)      by either Parent or the Company, if (i) the Merger  
shall not have been consummated before January 31, 1998 or (ii) the approval of 
the stockholders of each of Parent and the Company required by Sections 5.12 and 
4.18, respectively, shall not have been obtained at a meeting duly convened 
therefor or any adjournment thereof (unless, in the case of any such termination 
pursuant to this Section 9.1(b), the failure to so consummate the Merger by such 
date or to obtain such stockholder approval shall have been caused by the action 
or failure to act of the party (or its Subsidiaries) seeking to terminate this 
Agreement, which action or failure to act constitutes a breach of this 
Agreement); provided, however, that this Agreement may be extended not more than 
90 days by Parent or the Company by written notice to the other party if the 
Merger shall not have been consummated solely as a result of the failure of any 
of the conditions set forth in Section 8.1(a)  or Section 8.1(f) to be 
satisfied, but only if no permanent injunction or other order described in 
Section 9.1(c) shall have been issued and the failure of such conditions to be 
satisfied shall not have been caused by the action or failure to act of the 
party seeking to extend this Agreement, which action or failure to act 
constitutes a breach of this Agreement; 
 
                  (c)      by either Parent or the Company, if any permanent  
injunction or action by any Governmental Entity of competent jurisdiction 
preventing the consummation of the Merger shall have become final and 
nonappealable; provided, however, that the party seeking to terminate this 
Agreement pursuant to this Section 9.1(c) shall have used all reasonable efforts 
to remove such injunction or overturn such action; 
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                  (d)      by Parent, if (i) there has been a breach of any  
representations or warranties of the Company set forth herein the effect of 
which individually or together with all other such breaches, is a Company 
Material Adverse Effect, (ii) there has been a material breach of any covenant 
or agreement set forth in this Agreement on the part of the Company, which 
breach is not cured within 30 days after written notice of such breach is given 
by Parent to the Company, (iii) the Board of Directors of the Company (x) 
withdraws or amends or modifies in a manner adverse to Parent or Sub its 
recommendation or approval in respect of this Agreement or the Merger, (y) makes 
any recommendation with respect to an Acquisition Transaction (including making 
no recommendation or stating an inability to make a recommendation), other than 
a recommendation to reject such Acquisition Transaction, or (z) takes any action 
that would be prohibited by Section 7.2, (iv) any corporation, partnership, 
person or other entity or group (as defined in Section 13(d)(3) of the Exchange 
Act) ("Acquiring Person") other than Parent, or any affiliate or Subsidiary of 
Parent, shall have become the beneficial owner of more than 20% of the 
outstanding voting equity of the Company (either on a primary or a fully diluted 
basis); provided, however that "Acquiring Person" shall not include any 
corporation, partnership, person, other entity or group which beneficially owns 
as of the date hereof (either on a primary or a fully diluted basis) more than 
20% of the outstanding voting equity of the Company (either on a primary or a 
fully diluted basis) and which has not after the date hereof increased such 
ownership percentage by more than an additional 1% of the outstanding voting 
equity of the Company (either on a primary or a fully diluted basis), or (v) any 
other Acquisition Transaction shall have occurred with any Acquiring Person 
other than Parent, or any affiliate or Subsidiary of Parent; 
 
                  (e)      by the Company, if (i) there has been a breach of  
any representations or warranties of Parent set forth herein the effect of which 
individually or together with all other such breaches is a Parent Material 
Adverse Effect, (ii) there has been a material breach of any covenant or 
agreement set forth in this Agreement on the part of Parent, which breach is not 
cured within 30 days after written notice of such breach is given by the Company 
to Parent or (iii) such termination is necessary to allow the Company to enter 
into an Acquisition Transaction in accordance with the last sentence of Section 
7.2(b) (provided that the termination described in this clause (iii) shall not 
be effective unless and until the Company shall have paid to Parent in full the 
fee described in Section 9.2(b); 
 
                  (f)      by Parent, if the meeting of stockholders of the  
Company to vote upon this Agreement is canceled or is otherwise not held prior 
to January 31, 1998 (or such later date to which the date for termination of 
this Agreement pursuant to Section 9.1(b) has been extended in accordance with 
the terms thereof) except as a result of a judgment, injunction, order or decree 
of any competent authority or events or circumstances beyond the reasonable 
control of the Company; 
 
                  (g)      by the Company, if the meeting of stockholders of  
the Parent to vote upon this Agreement is canceled or is otherwise not held 
prior to January 31, 1998 (or such later date to which the date for termination 
of this Agreement pursuant to Section 9.2(b) has been extended in accordance 
with the terms thereof) except as a result of a judgment, injunction, order or 
decree of any competent authority or events or circumstances beyond the 
reasonable control of the Parent; and 
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                  (h)      by the Company, if the average of the closing sale  
prices of a share of Parent Common Stock during the twenty (20) trading days 
preceding the third business day prior to the date of the mailing of the Proxy 
Statement is less than $25.00 per share. 
 
                  Section 9.2       Effect of Termination. 
 
                  (a)      In the event of termination of this Agreement  
pursuant to this Article IX, the Merger shall be deemed abandoned and this 
Agreement shall forthwith become void, without liability on the part of any 
party hereto, except as provided in this Section 9.2, Section 7.1 (solely with 
respect to confidentiality), Section 7.10  and Section 7.16, and except that 
nothing herein shall relieve any party from liability for any breach of this 
Agreement. 
 
                  (b)      If (x) Parent shall have terminated this Agreement  
pursuant to Sections 9.1(d)(iii), 9.1(d)(iv) or 9.1(d)(v) or (y) either (1) the 
Company shall have terminated this Agreement pursuant to Section 9.1(b) or (2) 
Parent shall have terminated this Agreement pursuant to Section 9.1(d)(i), 
9.1(d)(ii) or 9.1(f) and, prior to or within six (6) months after any 
termination described in this clause (y), the Company (or any of its 
Subsidiaries) shall have directly or indirectly entered into a definitive 
agreement for, or shall have consummated, an Acquisition Transaction, or (z) the 
Company shall have terminated this Agreement pursuant to Section 9.1(e)(iii), 
then, in any of such cases, the Company shall pay Parent a termination fee of 
twelve million dollars ($12,000,000); provided, however, that any liquidated 
damage amounts previously paid by the Company to Parent pursuant to Section 
9.2(c) shall be credited against the termination fee payable under this Section 
9.2(b).   Any fees payable under this Section 9.2(b) shall be paid in same day 
funds no later than: (i) five business days after a termination described in 
clause (x) of this Section 9.2(b); (ii) concurrently with or prior to the 
entering into of the definitive agreement for, or the consummation of, such 
Acquisition Transaction, in the case of a termination described in clause (y) of 
this Section 9.2(b); or (iii) concurrently with or prior to a termination 
described in clause (z) of this Section 9.2(b).  For the sake of clarity, the 
parties hereto expressly acknowledge that Parent shall not be entitled to a fee 
pursuant to this Section 9.2(b) if, prior to the time that Parent would 
otherwise be entitled to such fee, the Company shall have properly terminated 
this agreement pursuant to Sections 9.1(e)(i), 9.1(e)(ii) or 9.1(g). 
 
                  (c)      If Parent shall have terminated this Agreement  
pursuant to Sections 9.1(d)(i), 9.1(d)(ii) or 9.1(f), then, in any of such 
cases, the Company shall pay to Parent, as liquidated damages and not as a 
penalty, seven million dollars ($7,000,000).  Such liquidated damage amount 
shall be payable no later than five business days after such termination. 
 
                  (d)      If the Company shall have terminated this Agreement 
pursuant to Sections 9.1(e)(i), 9.1(e)(ii) or 9.1(g), then, in either such case, 
Parent shall pay to the Company as liquidated damages and not as a penalty, 
 
seven million dollars ($7,000,000).  Such liquidated damage amount shall be 
payable no later than five business days after such termination. 
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                                  ARTICLE X 
 
                              GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
                  Section 10.1      Amendment and Modification.  At any time  
prior to the Effective Time, this Agreement may be amended, modified or 
supplemented only by written agreement (referring specifically to this 
Agreement) of Parent, Sub and the Company with respect to any of the terms 
contained herein; provided, however, that after any approval and adoption of 
this Agreement by the stockholders of Parent or the Company, no such amendment, 
modification or supplementation shall be made which under applicable law 
requires the approval of such stockholders, without the further approval of such 
stockholders. 
 
                  Section 10.2      Waiver.  At any time prior to the Effective 
Time, Parent and Sub, on the one hand, and the Company, on the other hand, may 
(i) extend the time for the performance of any of the obligations or other acts 
of the other, (ii) waive any inaccuracies in the representations and warranties 
of the other contained herein or in any documents delivered pursuant hereto and 
(iii) waive compliance by the other with any of the agreements or conditions 
contained herein which may legally be waived.  Any such extension or waiver 
shall be valid only if set forth in an instrument in writing specifically 
referring to this Agreement and signed on behalf of such party. 
 
                  Section 10.3      Survivability; Investigations.  The  
respective representations and warranties of Parent and the Company contained 
herein or in any certificates or other documents delivered prior to or as of the 
Effective Time (i) shall not be deemed waived or otherwise affected by any 
investigation made by any party hereto and (ii) shall not survive beyond the 
Effective Time. The covenants and agreements of the parties hereto (including 
the Surviving Corporation after the Merger) shall survive the Effective Time 
without limitation (except for those which, by their terms, contemplate a 
shorter survival period). 
 
                  Section 10.4      Notices.  All notices and other  
communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be delivered personally 
or by next-day courier or telecopied with confirmation of receipt, to the 
parties at the addresses specified below (or at such other address for a party 
as shall be specified by like notice; provided that notices of a change of 
address shall be effective only upon receipt thereof.  Any such notice shall be 
effective upon receipt, if personally delivered or telecopied, or one day after 
delivery to a courier for next-day delivery. 
 
                  (a)      If to Parent or Sub, to: 
 
                           Henry Schein, Inc. 
                           135 Duryea Road 
 
                           Melville, New York  11747 
 
                           Attention:  Mark E. Mlotek 
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                           with a copy to: 
 
                           Proskauer Rose LLP 
                           1585 Broadway 
                           New York, New York  10036 
 
                           Attention:  Robert A. Cantone, Esq. 
 
                  (b)      if to the Company, to: 
 
                           Sullivan Dental Products, Inc. 
                           10920 West Lincoln Avenue 
                           West Allis, Wisconsin  53227 
                           Attention:  Timothy J. Sullivan 
 
                           with a copy to: 
 
                           Wolfe, Wolfe & Ryd 
                           20 N. Wacker Drive, Suite 3550 
                           Chicago, IL  60606 
 
                           Attention:  Kerry B. Wolfe, Esq. 
 
If Parent, on the one hand, or the Company, on the other, has or gains  
knowledge prior to the Effective Date of any breach of any representation, 
warranty or covenant of the other set forth in this Agreement, Parent or the 
Company, as the case may be, shall promptly notify the other of such breach, but 
any failure to give such notice shall not affect such party's rights or remedies 
hereunder in respect thereof. 
 
                  Section 10.5      Descriptive Headings; Interpretation.  The  
headings contained in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and shall 
not affect in any way the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement.  
References in this Agreement to Sections, Schedules, Exhibits or Articles mean a 
Section, Schedule, Exhibit or Article of this Agreement unless otherwise 
indicated. References to this Agreement shall be deemed to include the Exhibits 
and Schedules hereto, unless the context otherwise requires.  The term "person" 
shall mean and include an individual, a partnership, a joint venture, a 
corporation, a trust, a Governmental Entity or an unincorporated organization. 
 
                  Section 10.6      Entire Agreement; Assignment.  This  
Agreement  (including the Schedules and other documents and instruments referred 
to herein), together with the Irrevocable Proxy and Termination Rights Agreement 
and the Confidentiality Agreement, constitute the entire agreement and supersede 
 
all other prior agreements and understandings, both written and oral, among the 
parties or any of them, with respect to the subject matter hereof.  This 
Agreement is not intended to confer upon any person not a party hereto any 
rights or remedies hereunder.  This Agreement shall not be assigned by operation 
of law or otherwise; provided that Parent or Sub may 
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assign its rights and obligations hereunder to a direct or indirect subsidiary 
of Parent, but no such assignment shall relieve Parent or Sub, as the case may 
be, of its obligations hereunder. 
 
                  Section 10.7      Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be  
governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of New York 
without giving effect to the provisions thereof relating to conflicts of law, 
except to the extent relating to matters governed by the General Corporation Law 
of the State of Delaware or the WBCL. 
 
                  Section 10.8      Severability.  In case any one or more of  
the provisions contained in this Agreement should be invalid, illegal or 
unenforceable in any respect against a party hereto, the validity, legality and 
enforceability of the remaining provisions contained herein shall not in any way 
be affected or impaired thereby and such invalidity, illegality or 
unenforceability shall only apply as to such party in the specific jurisdiction 
where such judgment shall be made. 
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                  Section 10.9      Counterparts.  This Agreement may be  
executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an 
original but all of which shall constitute one and the same agreement. 
 
 
                  IN WITNESS WHEREFORE, each of Parent, Sub and the Company has 
caused this Agreement to be executed on its behalf by its officers thereunto 
duly authorized, all as of the date first above written. 
 
                                            HENRY SCHEIN, INC. 
 
 
                                            By:/S/ MARK E. MLOTEK      
                                               ------------------------------- 
                                               Name:  Mark E. Mlotek 
                                               Title:  Vice President 
 
 
                                            HSI ACQUISITION CORP. 
 
 
                                            By:/S/ MARK E. MLOTEK            
 
                                               -------------------------------- 
                                               Name:  Mark E. Mlotek 
                                               Title:  Vice President 
 
 
                                            SULLIVAN DENTAL PRODUCTS, INC. 
 
 
                                             By:/S/ TIMOTHY J. SULLIVAN        
                                                ------------------------------- 
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              IRREVOCABLE PROXY AND TERMINATION RIGHTS AGREEMENT 
 
                  IRREVOCABLE PROXY AND TERMINATION RIGHTS AGREEMENT dated as  
of August 3, 1997, by and among Henry Schein, Inc., a Delaware corporation 
("Parent"), and the persons listed on Schedule A hereto (collectively, the 
"Shareholders" and each a "Shareholder"), each a shareholder of Sullivan Dental 
Products, Inc., a Wisconsin corporation (the "Company"), as revised. 
 
                  Contemporaneously with the execution of this Agreement, the 
Company, Parent and HSI Acquisition Corp., a Wisconsin corporation and 
wholly-owned subsidiary of Parent ("Sub"), are entering into an Agreement and 
Plan of Merger (the "Merger Agreement") pursuant to which it is contemplated 
that Sub will be merged with and into the Company (the "Merger") and the holders 
of the Company's common stock, par value $.01 per share (the "Company Common 
Stock"), will be entitled to receive shares of Parent's common stock, par value 
$.01 per share ("Parent Common Stock"), for such shares of Company Common Stock. 
 
                  Parent, as a condition to its willingness to enter into the 
Merger Agreement, has required the Shareholders to pay Parent certain amounts in 
respect of the sale of their shares of Company Common Stock following 
termination of the Merger Agreement in certain circumstances and to grant Parent 
an irrevocable proxy with respect to all of the shares of Company Common Stock 
owned by the Shareholders, together with any additional shares of Company Common 
Stock hereafter acquired by the Shareholders (pursuant to Section 8, by exercise 
of options or otherwise (such specified number of shares, and any additional 
shares when and if acquired, being referred to as the "Shares") on the terms and 
conditions hereinafter set forth. 
 
                  The parties hereto agree as follows: 
 
                  1.       Termination Rights. 
 
                           (a)      If  (i) the Merger Agreement is terminated  
by Parent pursuant to Sections 9.1(d)(i), 9.1(d)(ii), 9.1(d)(iii), 9.1(d)(iv), 
9.1(d)(v) or 9.1(f) of the Merger Agreement, or by the Company pursuant to 
Section 9.1(e)(iii) of the Merger Agreement, or by the Company pursuant to 
Section 9.1(b) of the Merger Agreement, and (ii) any Shareholder shall have 
sold, exchanged or otherwise disposed of any of his, her or its Shares pursuant 
to an Acquisition Transaction (such term as defined in the Merger Agreement), 
then, such Shareholder shall pay, or cause to be paid, in same day funds (to the 
extent of cash received and otherwise payable in kind) to Parent upon demand an 
amount equal to (x) such Shareholder's Profit per Share multiplied by (y) the 
aggregate number of Shares sold, exchanged or otherwise disposed of by such 
Shareholder. As used herein, "Profit per Share" in connection with a sale, 
exchange or other disposition of Shares by a Shareholder shall mean, on a per 
Share basis, thirty-five percent (35%) 
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of the amount by which (A) the sum of (1) if such sale, exchange or other 
 
disposition is for or made in cash, the cash received by the Shareholder in 
respect of each Share, (2) if such sale, exchange or other disposition is for or 
made in marketable securities, the fair market value at the time such securities 
are received by the Shareholder of the securities received in respect of each 
Share, (3) if such sale, exchange or other disposition is for or made in 
property other than cash or marketable securities, the fair market value at the 
time such property is received by the Shareholder of the property received in 
respect of each Share (or any combination of the consideration referred to in 
clauses (1), (2) and (3)), and (4) without duplication, any dividends or 
interest received by the Shareholder in respect of each Share, exceeds (B) the 
fair market value of 0.735 shares of Parent Common Stock on the date of 
termination of the Merger Agreement. As used herein, the term "fair market 
value" shall mean, in the case of marketable securities, the average of the 
closing sales prices of such securities, for the five immediately preceding 
trading days, on the principal securities exchange on which such security is 
listed, if such security is listed on any such exchange, or on the NASDAQ 
National Market, if such security is listed thereon, or the closing bid 
quotation with respect to the security on NASDAQ or any similar system then in 
general use, if such quotations are available, and, in the case of other 
property, the fair market value thereof as agreed to by the parties, or, if they 
are unable to agree, as determined by a third party appraiser selected by the 
parties. 
 
                           (b)      Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement  
to the contrary, if (x) any Shares listed on Schedule A as being beneficially 
owned by Robert J. Sullivan ("Sullivan") or the Timothy J. Sullivan Irrevocable 
Trust dated December 22, 1989 (the "Trust") are acquired (the "Acquired Shares") 
by any other person pursuant to any lien, option or other right listed thereon, 
and (y) Sullivan and/or the Trust, as applicable, sells or disposes of any 
Shares pursuant to an Acquisition Transaction, Sullivan and/or the Trust, as the 
case may be, shall be deemed to have sold or disposed of the Acquired Shares in 
the Acquisition Transaction and shall be responsible for paying the Profit per 
Share with respect thereto in accordance with Section 1(a). 
 
                  2. Irrevocable Proxy. Each Shareholder hereby irrevocably 
constitutes and appoints Parent or any designee of Parent the lawful agent, 
attorney and proxy of such Shareholder during the term of this Agreement, to 
vote all of his, her or its Shares at any meeting or in connection with any 
written consent of the Company's shareholders (a) in favor of the Merger, (b) in 
favor of the Merger Agreement, as such may be modified or amended from time to 
time, (c) against any Acquisition Transaction (other than the Merger) or other 
merger, sale, or other business combination between the Company and any other 
person or entity or any other action which would make it impractical for Parent 
to effect a merger or other business combination of the Company with Parent or 
Sub, and (d) against any other action or agreement that would result in a breach 
of any covenant, representation or warranty or any other obligation or agreement 
of the Company under the Merger Agreement or which would result in any of the 
Company's obligations under the Merger Agreement not being fulfilled. This proxy 
shall not authorize Parent to vote the Shares on any matters other than those 
specified above which may be presented to the Company's shareholders at any 
meeting or in connection with any written consent of the Company's shareholders. 
This power of attorney is irrevocable, is granted in consideration of Parent 
entering into the Merger Agreement and is coupled with an interest 
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sufficient in law to support an irrevocable power. This appointment shall revoke 
all prior attorneys and proxies appointed by any Shareholder at any time with 
respect to the Shares and the matters set forth in clauses (a) through (d) above 
and no subsequent attorneys or proxies will be appointed by such Shareholder, or 
be effective, with respect thereto. 
 
                  3.       Representations and Warranties of the Shareholders.  
Each Shareholder represents and warrants to Parent as follows: 
 
                           (a)      Ownership of Shares.  Except as set forth  
on Schedule A hereto, that Shareholder is the sole beneficial owner of the 
number of Shares set forth as being owned by that Shareholder on Schedule A 
hereto. The Shares set forth opposite that Shareholder's name on Schedule A 
constitute all the Shares owned beneficially or of record by that Shareholder. 
The Shares owned by that Shareholder are validly issued, fully paid and 
nonassessable and such Shares set forth opposite that Shareholder's name on 
Schedule A are held by that Shareholder, or by a nominee or custodian for the 
benefit of that Shareholder, free and clear of all liens, claims, security 
interests, agreements and other encumbrances, except for encumbrances arising 
under this Agreement or as set forth on Schedule A. 
 
                           (b)      Power; Binding Agreement.  That Shareholder 
has the legal capacity to enter into and perform all of that Shareholder's 
obligations under this Agreement. The execution, delivery and performance of 
this Agreement by that Shareholder will not violate any other agreement to which 
that Shareholder is a party, including, without limitation, any voting 
agreement, shareholders agreement or voting trust or, if applicable, that 
shareholder's trust agreement. This Agreement has been duly and validly executed 
and delivered by that Shareholder and constitutes a valid and binding obligation 
of that Shareholder, enforceable against that Shareholder in accordance with its 
terms, except as enforceability may be limited by applicable bankruptcy, 
insolvency and similar laws affecting creditors' rights generally and subject to 
general principles of equity. If that Shareholder is married and that 
Shareholder's Shares constitute community property, this Agreement has been duly 
authorized, executed and delivered by, and constitutes a valid and binding 
obligation of, that Shareholder's spouse, enforceable against that spouse in 
accordance with its terms, except as enforceability may be limited by applicable 
bankruptcy, insolvency and similar laws affecting creditors' rights generally 
and subject to general principles of equity. (Robert J. Sullivan (and no other 
Shareholder) make the representations and warranties set forth in this Section 
3(b) with respect to each Shareholder.) 
 
                           (c)      Consents and Approvals; No Violation.   
her the execution and delivery of this Agreement by that Shareholder nor the 
consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement will: (i) 
require any consent, approval, authorization or permit of, or filing with or 
notification to, any person or entity or any governmental or regulatory 
authority, except in connection with the HSR Act or pursuant to the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934; (ii) conflict with, result in a breach of, or result in a 
default (or give rise to a right of termination, cancellation or acceleration) 
 
under any of the terms, conditions or provisions of any note, license, agreement 
or other instrument or obligation to which that Shareholder is a party or 
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by which that Shareholder or any of that Shareholder's assets may be bound; or 
(iii) violate any order, writ, injunction, decree, statute, rule or regulation 
applicable to that Shareholder or by which any of that Shareholder's assets are 
bound. 
 
                           (d)      Brokers.  No broker, finder or other  
investment banker is entitled to any broker's, finder's or other similar fee or 
commission in connection with this Agreement or the transactions contemplated by 
this Agreement based upon agreements made by or on behalf of that Shareholder. 
 
                  4.       Representations and Warranties of Parent.  Parent  
represents and warrants to each Shareholder that: 
 
                           (a)      Power; Binding Agreement.  Parent has the  
corporate power and authority to enter into and perform all its obligations 
under this Agreement. The execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement 
by Parent will not violate any other agreement to which Parent is a party. This 
Agreement has been duly and validly authorized, executed and delivered by Parent 
and constitutes a valid and binding obligation of Parent, enforceable against 
Parent in accordance with its terms, except as enforceability may be limited by 
applicable bankruptcy, insolvency and similar laws affecting creditors' rights 
generally and subject to general principles of equity. 
 
                           (b)      Consents and Approvals; No Violation.   
Neither the execution and delivery of this Agreement by Parent nor the 
consummation by Parent of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement will: 
(i) require any consent, approval, authorization or permit of, or filing with or 
notification to, any person or entity or any governmental or regulatory 
authority, except in connection with the HSR Act or pursuant to the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934; (ii) conflict with, result in a breach of, or result in a 
default (or give rise to a right of termination, cancellation or acceleration) 
under any of the terms, conditions or provisions of any note, license, agreement 
or other instrument or obligation to which Parent is a party or by which Parent 
or any of its assets may be bound; or (iii) violate any order, writ, injunction, 
decree, statute, rule or regulation applicable to Parent or by which any of its 
assets are bound. 
 
                           (c)      Brokers.  No broker, finder or other  
investment banker is entitled to any broker's, finder's or other similar fee or 
commission in connection with this Agreement or the transactions contemplated by 
this Agreement based upon agreements made by or on behalf of Parent. 
 
                  5.       Additional Covenants of the Shareholders.  Each  
Shareholder hereby covenants and agrees that: 
 
                           (a)      that Shareholder will not enter into any  
transaction, take any action, or by inaction permit any event to occur that 
 
would (i) result in any of the representations or warranties of such Shareholder 
herein contained not being true and correct at and as of the time immediately 
after the occurrence of such transaction, action or event; or (ii) have the 
effect 
 
                                     -4- 
 



 
 
of preventing or disabling that Shareholder from performing that Shareholder's 
obligations under this Agreement; 
 
                           (b)      until the termination of the proxies  
granted under Section 2 hereof, that Shareholder will not grant any proxies or 
powers of attorney with respect to any Shares, deposit any Shares into a voting 
trust or enter into a voting agreement with respect to such Shares; 
 
                           (c)      until the termination of the proxies  
granted under Section 2 hereof, that Shareholder will at all times use his, her 
or its best efforts in his, her or its capacity as a shareholder of the Company 
to prevent the Company from taking any action in violation of the Merger 
Agreement; 
 
                           (d)      from and after the date hereof until the  
termination of this Agreement, other than under the circumstances contemplated 
by Section 1 hereof, the Shares will not be sold, transferred, pledged, 
hypothecated, transferred by gift, or otherwise disposed of in any manner 
whatsoever without notifying Parent in advance and obtaining and delivering to 
Parent any evidence that Parent may reasonably request to evidence the 
transferee's agreement to be bound by this Agreement; provided, however, that in 
the event of that Shareholder's death during the term of this Agreement, the 
Shares may be transferred in accordance with the Shareholder's last will and 
testament, or if none, in accordance with the applicable laws of intestate 
succession, in either of which cases, the Shares shall remain subject in all 
respects to the terms of this Agreement; and 
 
                           (e)      the Shareholder will execute and deliver  
any additional documents reasonably necessary or desirable, in the opinion of 
Parent's or the Company's counsel, to evidence the irrevocable proxy granted in 
Section 2 with respect to the Shares or otherwise implement and effect the 
provisions of this Agreement. 
 
                  6. No Solicitation. No Shareholder shall, in that 
Shareholder's capacity as such, directly or indirectly, (a) solicit, initiate, 
facilitate or encourage (including by way of furnishing or disclosing non-public 
information) any inquiries or the making of any proposal with respect to any 
Acquisition Transaction, (b) negotiate, explore or otherwise engage in 
discussion with any person (other than Parent and its representatives) with 
respect to any Acquisition Transaction, (c) agree to or endorse an Acquisition 
Transaction with any person (other than Parent or Sub) or enter into any 
agreement, arrangement or understanding with respect to any such Acquisition 
Transaction or which would require the Company to abandon, terminate or fail to 
consummate the Merger or any other transaction contemplated by the Merger 
Agreement, or (d) authorize or permit any person or entity acting on behalf of 
 
that Shareholder to do any of the foregoing. If any Shareholder receives any 
inquiry or proposal regarding any Acquisition Transaction, that Shareholder 
shall promptly inform Parent of that inquiry or proposal. 
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                  7. Legending of Certificates; Nominee Shares. Each Shareholder 
agrees to submit to Parent contemporaneously with or promptly following 
execution of this Agreement (or promptly following receipt of any additional 
certificates representing any additional Shares) all certificates representing 
the Shares so that Parent may note thereon a legend referring to the rights to 
certain payments and proxy granted to it by this Agreement. If any of the Shares 
beneficially owned by a Shareholder are held of record by a brokerage firm in 
"street name" or in the name of any other nominee (a "Nominee," and, as to such 
Shares, "Nominee Shares"), the Shareholder agrees that, upon written notice by 
Parent requesting it, such Shareholder will within five days of the giving of 
such notice execute and deliver to Parent a limited power of attorney in such 
form as shall be reasonably satisfactory to Parent enabling Parent to require 
the Nominee to grant to Parent the rights to certain payments and an irrevocable 
proxy to the same effect as Sections 1 and 2 hereof with respect to the Nominee 
Shares held by such Nominee and to submit to Parent the certificates 
representing such Nominee Shares for notation of the above-referenced legend 
thereon. 
 
                  8. Adjustments to Prevent Dilution, Etc. In the event of a 
stock dividend or distribution, or any change in Company Common Stock by reason 
of any stock dividend, split-up, recapitalization, combination, exchange of 
shares or the like, the term "Shares" shall be deemed to refer to and include 
the Shares as well as all such stock dividends and distributions and any shares 
into which or for which any or all of the Shares may be changed or exchanged. 
 
                  9. Shareholder Capacity. No person executing this Agreement 
who is or becomes during the term of this Agreement a director of the Company 
makes any agreement hereunder in his or her capacity as a director. Each 
Shareholder is executing and delivering this Agreement solely in that 
Shareholder's capacity as the record and beneficial owner of that Shareholder's 
Shares. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, no action or 
inaction by a Shareholder in his capacity as a director, officer, or employee of 
the Company shall be deemed to contravene Section 6, as long as the action or 
inaction does not contravene Section 7.2 of the Merger Agreement. 
 
                  10. Termination. This Agreement shall terminate on the earlier 
of (i) the Effective Time of the Merger and (ii) 12 months following the date of 
termination of the Merger Agreement; provided, however, that the appointment of 
Parent or any designee of Parent as agent, attorney and proxy pursuant to 
Section 2 hereof, and any proxy or other instrument executed pursuant thereto, 
shall in any event automatically terminate upon the termination of the Merger 
Agreement. 
 
                  11.      Miscellaneous. 
 
                            (a)      No Waiver.  The failure of any party to   
 
exercise any right, power or remedy under this Agreement or otherwise available 
in respect of this Agreement at law or in equity, or to insist upon compliance 
by any other party with that party's obligations under this Agreement, shall not 
constitute a waiver of any right to exercise any such or other right, power or 
remedy or to demand such compliance. 
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                           (b)      Notices.  All notices and other  
communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be delivered personally 
or by next-day courier or telecopied with confirmation of receipt, to the 
parties at the addresses specified below (or at such other address for a party 
as shall be specified by like notice; provided that notices of a change of 
address shall be effective only upon receipt thereof). Any such notice shall be 
effective upon receipt, if personally delivered or telecopied, or one day after 
delivery to a courier for next-day delivery. 
 
         (i)      If to Parent, to: 
 
                           Henry Schein, Inc. 
                           135 Duryea Road 
                           Melville, New York  11747 
                           Attn:  Mark E. Mlotek, Esq. 
 
                  with a copy to: 
 
                           Proskauer Rose LLP 
                           1585 Broadway 
                           New York, New York 10036 
                           Attention:  Robert A. Cantone, Esq. 
 
         (ii)     if to a Shareholder, to the address set forth opposite such  
Shareholder's name on 
 
                  Schedule A 
 
 
                  with a copy to: 
 
                           Wolfe, Wolfe & Ryd 
                           20 North Wacker Drive, Suite 3550 
                           Chicago, IL  60606 
                           Attn:  Kerry B. Wolfe, Esq. 
 
                           (c)      Descriptive Headings; Interpretation.  The  
headings contained in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and shall 
not affect in way the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement. References in 
this Agreement to Sections and Schedules mean a Section or Schedule of this 
Agreement unless otherwise indicated. The terms "beneficially own" and 
"beneficial owner" with respect to any securities shall have the same meaning as 
in, 
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and shall be determined in accordance with, Rule 13d-3 under the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934. 
 
                           (d)      Entire Agreement; Assignment.  This  
Agreement (including the schedule and other documents and instruments referred 
to herein), together with the Merger Agreement, constitute the entire agreement 
and supersede all other prior agreements and understandings, both written and 
oral, among the parties or any of them, with respect to the subject matter 
hereof. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, this Agreement is not 
intended to confer upon any person not a party hereto any rights or remedies 
hereunder. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, this Agreement shall 
not be assigned by operation of law or otherwise; provided that Parent or Sub 
may assign its rights and obligations hereunder to a direct or indirect 
subsidiary of Parent, but no such assignment shall relieve Parent or Sub, as the 
case may be, of its obligations hereunder. 
 
                           (e)      Liability After Transfer.  Each Shareholder  
agrees that, notwithstanding any transfer of that Shareholder's Shares in 
accordance with Section 5(d), that Shareholder shall remain liable for his or 
her performance of all obligations under this Agreement. 
 
                           (f)      Injunctive Relief; Remedies Cumulative. 
 
                                    (i)     Parent, on the one hand, and the  
Shareholders, on the other hand, acknowledge that the other party will be 
irreparably harmed and that there will be no adequate remedy at law for a 
violation of any of the covenants or agreements of such party that are contained 
in this Agreement. It is accordingly agreed that, in addition to any other 
remedies that may be available to the non-breaching party upon the breach by any 
other party of such covenants and agreements, the non-breaching party shall have 
the right to obtain injunctive relief to restrain any breach or threatened 
breach of such covenants or agreements or otherwise to obtain specific 
performance of any of such covenants or agreements. 
 
                                    (ii)    No remedy conferred upon or  
reserved to any party herein is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy and 
every remedy shall be cumulative and in addition to every other remedy herein or 
now or hereafter existing at law, in equity or by statute. 
 
                           (g)      Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be  
governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of New York 
without giving effect to the provisions thereof relating to conflicts of laws. 
 
                           (h)      Effect of Partial Invalidity.  Whenever  
possible, each provision of this Agreement shall be construed in such a manner 
as to be effective and valid under applicable law. If any provision of this 
Agreement or the application thereof to any party or circumstance shall be 
prohibited by or invalid under applicable law, such provisions shall be 
ineffective to the extent of such prohibition without invalidating the remainder 
of such provision or any other 
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provisions of this Agreement or the application of such provision to the other 
party or other circumstances. 
 
                           (i)      Counterparts.  This Agreement may be  
executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an 
original but all of which shall constitute one and the same agreement. 
 
                                     -9- 
 



 
 
                  IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the 
parties as of the date first above written. 
 
THE SHAREHOLDERS: 
 
                                    THE TIMOTHY SULLIVAN IRREVOCABLE 
                                    TRUST DATED DECEMBER 22, 1989 
 
 
                                    By: /S/ TIMOTHY J. SULLIVAN 
                                       ------------------------------- 
                                    Timothy J. Sullivan, as Co-Trustee 
 
 
                                    By: /S/ KAY M. SULLIVAN 
                                        ------------------------------- 
                                        Kay M. Sullivan, as Co-Trustee 
 
 
                                    THE KATHERINE BLACK IRREVOCABLE 
                                    TRUST DATED DECEMBER 22, 1989 
 
 
                                    By: /S/ KATHERINE BLACK 
                                       -------------------------------- 
                                       Katherine Black, as Co-Trustee 
 
 
                                    By: /S/ HOWARD O. WOLFE 
                                       --------------------------------- 
                                       Howard O. Wolfe, as Co-Trustee 
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                                     THE MARY SCHWANKE IRREVOCABLE 
                                     TRUST DATED DECEMBER 22, 1989 
 
 
                                     By: /S/ MARY SCHWANKE 
                                        ---------------------------------- 
                                     Mary Schwanke, as Co-Trustee 
 
 
                                     By: /S/ HOWARD O. WOLFE 
                                         --------------------------------- 
                                         Howard O. Wolfe, as Co-Trustee 
 
 
                                     THE DONALD SCHWANKE IRREVOCABLE 
                                     TRUST DATED DECEMBER 22, 1989 
 
 
                                     By: /S/ MARY SCHWANKE 
                                        ------------------------------------ 
                                        Mary Schwanke, as Co-Trustee 
 
 
                                     By: /S/ HOWARD O. WOLFE 
                                         ------------------------------------ 
                                         Howard O. Wolfe, as Co-Trustee 
 
 
                                     THE ROBERT SULLIVAN, JR. IRREVOCABLE 
                                     TRUST DATED DECEMBER 22, 1989 
 
 
                                     By: /S/ ROBERT SULLIVAN, JR. 
                                        -------------------------------------- 
                                        Robert Sullivan, Jr., as Co-Trustee 
 
 
                                     By: /S/ HOWARD O. WOLFE 
                                        -------------------------------------- 
                                        Howard O. Wolfe, as Co-Trustee 
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                                     THE JANINE SULLIVAN IRREVOCABLE 
                                     TRUST DATED DECEMBER 22, 1989 
 
 
                                     By: /S/ ROBERT SULLIVAN, JR. 
                                        ---------------------------------------  
                                        Robert Sullivan, Jr., as Co-Trustee 
 
 
                                     By: /S/ HOWARD O. WOLFE 
                                        ---------------------------------------  
                                        Howard O. Wolfe, as Co-Trustee 
 
 
                                     THE ELIZABETH SULLIVAN IRREVOCABLE 
                                     TRUST DATED DECEMBER 22, 1989 
 
 
                                     By: /S/ ELIZABETH CIMLER 
                                        --------------------------------------- 
                                        Elizabeth Cimler, as Co-Trustee 
 
 
                                     By: /S/ HOWARD O. WOLFE 
                                        --------------------------------------- 
                                         Howard O. Wolfe, as Co-Trustee 
 
 
                                         /S/ ROBERT J. SULLIVAN, SR. 
                                        --------------------------------------- 
                                        Robert J. Sullivan, Sr. 
 
 
                                         /S/ TIMOTHY J. SULLIVAN 
                                        --------------------------------------- 
                                        Timothy J. Sullivan 
 
 
                                         /S/ KATHERINE BLACK 
                                        --------------------------------------- 
                                        Katherine Black 
 
 
                                        /S/ MARY SCHWANKE 
                                        --------------------------------------- 
                                        Mary Schwanke 
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                                        /S/ ROBERT SULLIVAN, JR. 
                                        --------------------------------------- 
                                        Robert Sullivan, Jr. 
 
 
                                        /S/ ELIZABETH CIMLER 
                                        --------------------------------------- 
                                        Elizabeth Cimler 
 
 
                                        /S/ ROBERT E. DOERING 
                                        --------------------------------------- 
                                        Robert E. Doering 
 
 
                                        /S/ WAYNE G. HOLT 
                                        --------------------------------------- 
                                        Wayne G. Holt 
 
 
                                        /S/ KEVIN J. ACKERET 
                                        --------------------------------------- 
                                        Hevin J. Ackeret 
 
 
                                        HENRY SCHEIN, INC. 
 
 
                                        By: /S/ MARK E. MLOTEK 
                                            ------------------------------------ 
                                            Name:  Mark E. Mlotek 
                                            Title:  Vice President 
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                                                         EXHIBIT 11.1 
 
                     HENRY SCHEIN, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
                      COMPUTATION OF EARNINGS PER SHARE 
                                 (unaudited) 
 
 
 
                                                            Three Months Ended                            Six Months Ended 
                                                     ---------------------------------         -------------------------------------
                                                         June 28,            June 29,             June 28,                 June 29, 
                                                            1997                1996                1997               1996 
                                                         ---------           ---------           ---------          --------- 
                                                                                                       
Net income (pro forma for 1996) per consolidated  
   statements of operations (in thousands).......   $        5,304       $       4,674         $      6,803        $       7,390 
                                                     =============       =============         ============        ============= 
Pro forma weighted average common 
   shares outstanding: 
   Shares outstanding at December 30, 
   1995 (1)......................................       18,936,791          18,936,791           18,936,791           18,936,791 
 
   1996 issuances: 
      Secondary Offering Shares..................       3,734, 375             373,309            3,734,375              188,642 
      Shares issued to ESOP trust ...............           24,210                 ---               24,210                  --- 
      Shares issued during 1996 in connection  
          with acquisitions......................          155,183                 ---              155,183                  --- 
      Additional Class B Options..........                  42,800                 ---               42,800                  --- 
      Stock options granted pursuant to 
          the 1996 Non-Employee                                                                             
          Director Stock Option Plan ............           10,000                 ---               10,000                  --- 
      Less:  1996 Treasury Stock 
          purchases..............................           (8,850)             (3,975)              (8,850)              (3,975) 
                                                 -----------------      --------------       --------------         ------------- 
                                                        22,894,509          19,306,125           22,894,509           19,121,458 
 
   1997 issuances: 
   Shares issued during 1997 in connection 
      with acquisitions..........................        1,916,866           1,070,000            1,488,780            1,070,000 
   Issuance of Stock Options.....................          374,000                 ---              219,879                  --- 
   1997 Non-Employee Director Stock 
      Option Plan................................            2,000                 ---                1,176                  --- 
   Shares issued to ESOP trust ..................           44,122                 ---               24,000                  --- 
   Issuance of Stock Options.....................          151,361                 ---               75,681                  --- 
 
   Less: 1997 Treasury Share purchases...........           (1,950)                ---               (1,688)                 --- 
 
Less assumed repurchase of shares under 
   treasury stock method (2): 
 
   Class A Stock options -- 219,747 shares 
                              X $4.21 
                    -----------------   
                      $925,135 ..................          (29,463)(2)         (26,707)(4)          (29,425)(3)          (29,256)(5)
 
   Non-Employee 
     Stock options -- 10,000 shares 
                           X $29.00 
                ------------------- 
                   $290,000 .....................           (9,236)(2)             ---               (9,224))(3)             --- 
 
 



 
 
 
                      HENRY SCHEIN, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
                 COMPUTATION OF EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 
                                  (Unaudited) 
                                  (Continued) 
 
 
 
 
                                                               Three Months Ended                          Six Months Ended 
                                                       ---------------------------------          ----------------------------------
                                                          June 28,            June 29,              June 28,         June 29, 
                                                            1997                1996                  1997             1996 
                                                         ---------            ---------             ---------       ---------  
                                                                                                         
 
   Class B Stock options -- 436,000 shares 
                   X various prices 
                 ------------------  
                  $7,659,250 ...............            (243,925)(2)          (187,232)(4)        (243,614)(3)      (205,097)(5) 
 
 
1997 Option issuances: 
   New Options--525,361 shares 
                X Various prices 
                ----------------- 
                $13,298,367 .................           (423,515)(2)               ---            (422,976)(3)           --- 
                                                     -----------           -----------         -----------       ----------- 
Weighted average common shares 
   outstanding                                        24,674,769            20,162,186          23,997,098        19,957,105 
                                                     -----------           -----------         -----------       ----------- 
Net income per common share                          $      0.21          $       0.23         $      0.28       $      0.37 
                                                     ===========          ============         ===========       =========== 
 
 
(1)   Includes options totalling 629,897 
(2)   Computed using the average closing value per share for the three 
      months ended June 28, 1997 of $31.40 
(3)   Computed using the average closing value per share for the six months 
      ended June 28, 1997 of $31.44 
(4)   Computed using the average closing value per share for the three months 
      ended June 29, 1996 of $34.90 
(5)   Computed using the average closing value per share for the six  months 
      ended June 29, 1996 of $31.86. 
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The schedule contains summary financial information extracted from the  
consolidated financial statements and is qualified in its entirety by  
reference to such financial statements. 

   1,000 
        
                                                     
                                          6-MOS 
                                      DEC-27-1997 
                                         DEC-29-1996 
                                           JUN-28-1997 
                                                 20,298 
                                           0 
                                          163,327 
                                           (4,525) 
                                            118,199 
                                       341,267 
                                                 83,341 
                                         42,838 
                                         484,753 
                                  131,495 
                                                53,825 
                                  0 
                                            0 
                                               242 
                                             304,337 
                           484,753 
                                                503,605 
                                       503,605 
                                                  352,841 
                                          352,841 
                                       137,528 
                                       609 
                                     1,703 
                                        12,481 
                                           6,138 
                                    6,803 
                                         0 
                                        0 
                                              0 
                                           6,803 
                                          0.28 
                                          0.28 
         
 
 
 


